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CHARACTERISTICS OF GEM OF THE STOCK
EXCHANGE OF HONG KONG LIMITED
(“STOCK EXCHANGE”)

GEM has been positioned as a market designed to
accommodate small and mid-sized companies to which
a higher investment risk may be attached than other
companies listed on the Stock Exchange. Prospective
investors should be aware of the potential risks of investing
in such companies and should make the decision to invest
only after due and careful consideration.

Given that the companies listed on GEM are generally small
and mid-sized companies, there is a risk that securities
traded on GEM may be more susceptible to high market
volatility than securities traded on the Main Board and no
assurance is given that there will be a liquid market in the
securities traded on GEM.

Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and the Stock
Exchange take no responsibility for the contents of this report,
make no representation as to its accuracy or completeness and
expressly disclaim any liability whatsoever for any loss howsoever
arising from or in reliance upon the whole or any part of the
contents of this report.

This report, for which the directors (“Directors”, each a “Director”)
of Finsoft Financial Investment Holdings Limited (“Company”)
collectively and individually accept full responsibility, includes
particulars given in compliance with the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on GEM of the Stock Exchange (“GEM Listing
Rules”) for the purpose of giving information with regard to the
Company. The Directors, having made all reasonable enquires,
confirm that, to the best of their knowledge and belief the
information contained in this report is accurate and complete in all
material respects and not misleading or deceptive, and there are
no other matters the omission of which would make any statement
herein or this report misleading.
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CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the board (“Board”) of directors (“Directors”) of Finsoft
Financial Investment Holdings Limited (“Company”), | hereby present
the annual results of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively,
“Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2018 (“Year”). During the
Year, the Group recorded revenue of approximately HK$70.1 million,
an increase of approximately 23.3% when compared with that of
approximately HK$56.9 million for the previous year. The basic and
diluted loss per share for the Year were HK1.206 cents.

The Hong Kong government has pledged tremendous support to
the local fintech (financial technology) start-ups, and encouraged
investments in the industry in order to develop a more vibrant
innovation and technology ecosystem in Hong Kong. Benefitting from
such benign economic conditions, the Group foresees a prospering
advantage of information technology to the provision of financial
services. The Group notices the immense interest in innovative trading
solutions inventions in the market, and will thus strive to further
strengthen its business in the provision of financial trading software
solutions. The Group’s principal operating subsidiary, iAsia Online
Systems Limited (“iAsia”), has continuously enhanced its financial
trading software solutions to keep pace with the regulatory and new
industry requirements. In the second half of 2018, the Stock Exchange
has introduced an investor ID model for Northbound trading (“NB
Investor ID Model”) under the Mainland-Hong Kong Stock Connect
(“Stock Connect”) which enables more efficient Hong Kong-Mainland
cross-border market surveillance. Our financial trading software
solutions have been optimised and upgraded to cope with the regime
and current market requirements, and are modular designed which
provide flexibility for our customers to expand their usage capacity in
accordance with the growth and changing needs of their businesses.
Going forward, the Group is confident about the prospects of new
technology and innovation in the provision of financial services in
Hong Kong. We will continue to keep abreast of the ever-changing
situation in the financial technology sector and to pay attention to the
new opportunities and challenges of the international and the local
communities.

The money lending business is another growing business segment
of the Group which contributed approximately 12.6% of the
Group’s turnover in the Year. The Group will continue to maintain a
prudent credit control strategy so as to balance the growth and risk
management of its money lending business.

The Group’s assets investments comprised properties investments
and securities investments during the Year. In view of the uncertainties
in the global economy which may have an adverse impact on the
property market in Hong Kong, the Group disposed of its two retail
shops in Hong Kong and recorded a loss on disposal of approximately
HK$23,000 for the Year. Resulting from the volatile Hong Kong
stock market in 2018, the performance of securities investments was
unsatisfactory and the Group recorded an unrealised fair value loss of
approximately HK$2.0 million for the Year.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
EREE

Looking ahead, we anticipate that the Hong Kong economy will
continue to be dimmed by uncertainties which may affect the financial
performance of the Group in the coming year. Consequently, the
Group will continue to strive for excellence in its products and services
in order to maintain our competitiveness and enhance our growth
potential in the fintech industry. In response to the rapid change in
the Hong Kong market, we are dedicated to exploring new business
opportunities with a view to diversifying the Group’s business scales
and risks.

Finally, on behalf of the Board, | would like to express my sincere
thanks to our shareholders, business partners and customers for their
confidence and continuous support for the Group. | would also like to
extend my gratitude to our staff for their dedications, commitment and
determination to succeed.

Chan Wai Lung
Chairman

Hong Kong, 26 March 2019
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

During the Year, the Group was principally engaged in the provision of
financial trading software solutions, provision of other IT and internet
financial platforms services, provision of referral services, money
lending business and assets investments in Hong Kong. During the
Year, one of the subsidiaries of the Company held the license in
respect of type 6 (advising on corporate finance) regulated activity
under the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Cap. 571 of the Laws of
Hong Kong) (“SFO”).

BUSINESS REVIEW

Provision of financial trading software solutions

During the Year, the financial trading software solutions business
division remained as the key source of income of the Group and
recorded a stable growth. The segment revenue from external
customers contributed by the Group’s principal operating
subsidiary, iAsia, amounted to approximately HK$58,311,000
(2017: approximately HK$51,455,000), representing an increase
of approximately HK$6,856,000 or 13.3%. As a result of the
increase in revenue, the profit before tax generated by this business
segment increased from approximately HK$20,754,000 in 2017 to
approximately HK$21,405,000 in 2018, representing an increase of
approximately HK$651,000 or 3.1%.

iAsia aims to achieve further growth of its financial trading software
solutions business by enhancing the development of its existing
products and broadening its customer base in order to maintain its
leading position in the financial trading software solutions industry
in Hong Kong. During the Year, iAsia has continuously enhanced its
financial trading software solutions to keep pace with the regulatory
and new industry requirements. For example, to mitigate hacking
risks associated with internet trading, the Securities and Futures
Commission (“SFC”) requires financial institutions to implement a two-
factor authentication for login to their clients’ internet trading accounts
and notify their clients promptly after certain activities have taken
place in their internet trading accounts. In this connection, iAsia has
introduced a one-time password sent via the short message service
(SMS) and provided a software token solution to its customers, as well
as upgraded its system in the aspect of message notification to the
end users. The implementation of such two-factor authentication by
iAsia has enhanced its customers’ confidence against cyber security
threats. Apart from this, the SFC has reached an agreement with the
China Securities Regulatory Commission (CSRC) to introduce the NB
Investor ID Model under the Stock Connect. Upon the implementation
of the NB Investor ID Model in September 2018, iAsia has optimised
and upgraded its current software to help its customers to provide the
investor identification information in a standard format to the Stock
Exchange for the compliance of the current market requirements. In
order to increase the degree of the customers’ satisfaction to iAsia’s
financial trading software solutions and services, regular trainings
were designed and provided to its customers to equip them with the
knowledge of the operation of the Group’s Front Office Trading System
and Back Office Trading System. We understand that the industries
and technology are constantly changing, briefing and training relating
to the Market Rehearsal of the Stock Exchange were held to ensure
the customers keep up with the industry’ regulations and technology.
Furthermore, in order to raise the Group’s brand awareness among
potential customers, iAsia had organised marketing events such as
technical seminars and conferences to promote its software solutions
and to build relationships with potential customers during the Year.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EHEFWE S

In the future, the Group will continue to keep up with the market trend
and the industry requirements. The Group will explore new business
opportunities and expand the Group’s income stream from both
existing and potential customers.

Provision of other IT and internet financial platforms
services

During the Year, the provision of other IT and internet financial
platforms services business division contributed a segment revenue
from external customers of approximately HK$868,000 (2017:
approximately HK$275,000) and recorded a loss of approximately
HK$5,927,000 (2017: approximately HK$3,934,000). In order to
improve the sales performance of this business division, the Group
will continue to diversify the provision of other IT services, such as
the provision of development of websites, mobile applications and
programs to new customers. The Group will seize opportunities to
diversify the client base of its provision of other IT and internet financial
platforms services business in order to strengthen its competitiveness
in the industry.

Money lending business

During the Year, revenue derived from the money lending
business division amounted to approximately HK$8,818,000
(2017: approximately HK$4,519,000), representing an increase of
approximately HK$4,299,000 or 95.1%. This business segment
recorded profit before tax of approximately HK$1,064,000 during the
Year (2017: approximately HK$195,000). The interest rate charged
to customers during the Year ranged from 8.5% per annum to 13.0%
per annum. As at 31 December 2018, no impairment loss on loans
receivable balance was recorded by the Group.

As at 31 December 2018, the Group had advanced HK$99,590,000
to independent third party borrowers (31 December 2017:
HK$26,590,000). The Group’s money lending business has grown
to a considerable size and the management believes that the money
lending business will remain to be a sustainable business sector of the
Group.

The management believes that the money lending business can
generate stable revenue and reasonable returns to the Group and it is
in the interests of the Company and its shareholders (“Shareholders”)
as a whole to expand the money lending business and devote more
financial resources to this business division. The Group will continue to
maintain a prudent credit control strategy so as to balance the growth
and risk management of its money lending business.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Provision of referral services

During the Year, no contract was made under the provision of referral
services business division and no revenue was generated as a result
(2017: Nil). Given that the Group had not conducted any sales under
this business division since 2017, the management of the Company
had devoted more of the Group’s resources to its other business
divisions and reduced the internal resources allocated to this business
division during the Year.

Provision of corporate finance advisory services
During the Year and up to the date of this report, the Group has been
recruiting qualified staff to re-commence its provision of corporate
finance advisory services business. As a result, no contract was made
under the corporate finance advisory services business division and no
revenue was generated for the Year (2017: Nil). During the Year, a loss
of approximately HK$720,000 (2017: approximately HK$1,000,000)
was recorded as a result of the administrative costs of operations of
this business division.

Assets investments

The Group’s assets investments business during the Year consisted of
(a) investments in properties; and (b) investments in securities that are
held for trading.

(a) Properties investments
The principal properties investments of the Group were two retail
shops located in the residential area of Siu Sai Wan, Hong Kong
(“Properties”). During the Year, rental income of approximately
HK$575,000 was generated (2017: HK$636,000).

On 19 September 2018, China Universal Limited (a wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company) and an independent third
party purchaser (“Purchaser”) entered into a provisional sale
and purchase agreement, pursuant to which China Universal
Limited has agreed to sell, and the Purchaser has agreed to
purchase, the Properties at an aggregate consideration of
HK$19,100,000 (“IP Disposal”). The Board considered that the
IP Disposal represented a good opportunity for the Group to
realise its investment in the Properties given the uncertainties in
the global economy which may have an adverse impact on the
property market in Hong Kong. The formal agreement for the IP
Disposal was signed on 2 October 2018. The IP Disposal was
completed in November 2018 and the Group recorded a loss on
disposal of investment properties of approximately HK$23,000
during the Year. Further details of the IP Disposal are set out in
the announcement of the Company dated 19 September 2018.
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EMBEH - FREWELESTHE 2 EXNHBHER
E—\F+AZAEE -REAMELESE
RZZE—N\F+— AR ERAEERF R
JFHERBEYE 2 EIBL23,000%8 T - A 4
BEYMEHEETENFBERNARAIBHA
ZE-NFALA+NABMHRE -
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
THBHWRE S

(b) Securities investments that are held for trading (b)
Set out below is the breakdown of the Group’s securities
investments recorded as financial assets at fair value through

profit or loss as at 31 December 2018:

HIFEBHEFRE

EH AR

Movements during the year ended 31 December 2018
BE-E-NET-A=t-ALEENED

TXHEINAEER T N\F+_A=1+—
FBREAEATFEEFARENEREED

Number of
shares held
and % oftotal  Percentageto  Percentage to
share capital the Group’s the Group's
Carrying Carrying held by the auditednet  audited total
amount as at amount as at Group as at assets as at assets as at
31 December Unrealised ~ 31December 31 December 31 December 31 December
Description of investments 2017 Addition loss 2018 2018 2018 2018
R=Z-N§
tZA=t-H HA%E Ex&E
KEN  RZE-NF RIB-NF
RZB-t§ RZB-N§ RH®AR t-A=t-B tZRA=t-A
tZA=t-8 TZRZt-B  RREFEH BENEE BEG
REf HEEE £m FRER HWEEE SRANAME FENESRL LEENESM
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000
T T Tén T
(Approximate) ~ (Approximate) ~ (Approximate)  (Approximate)  (Approximate)  (Approximate)  (Approximate)
(#4) (#47) (#40) (#4) (#47) (#4) (#4)
PT International Development Corporation Limited REEBEEEAEAR AT - 1,255 (162) 1,093 2,766,000 06% 05%
(Stock Code: 372) (RIARE - 872) shares (0.14%)
(‘PT Intemational’) (ot ([RERR)) (Hita) 2,766,000
(0.14%)
China Demeter Financil Investments AReRREARAR - 2220 (152) 2068 44000000 1.1% 09%
Limited (Stock Code: 8120) (RIAK : 8120) shares (3.59%)
(‘China Demeter’) (rote 4/ (818 ]) (Histe) 44,000,000%
(3.59%)
Lumina Group Limited (Stock Code: 8470) LHEEERAF(RORE  8470) - 6,700 (1,707) 4993 13,680,000 2.6% 2.1%
(‘Lumina’) (rote ¢) ([&&]) (Hite) shares (2.28%)
13,680,000/
(2.28%)
Total: @i - 10,175 (2,021) 8154

Finsoft Financial Investment Holdings Limited
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

PT International and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as “PT
International Group”) are principally engaged in the businesses of
investment holding, comprising strategic investments in PY| Corporation
Limited and Burcon NutraScience Corporation, investments in
other financial assets and securities, provision of finance, property
investments, and trading business of commodities. As disclosed in the
interim report of PT International for the six months ended 30 September
2018, (i) the unaudited revenue (excluding interest revenue) and profit
of PT International for the six months ended 30 September 2018 were
approximately HK$1,230.9 million and HK$358.1 million respectively;
(i) the PT International Group would continue to develop existing
businesses and enhance the asset quality and actively improve its overall
competitiveness, strengthen its capital base, optimise its investment
portfolio and implement comprehensive risk management strategies,
thereby laying a solid foundation for their long-term development; and
(iii) the PT International Group would also make great efforts to re-build
its strategic priorities and align its business initiatives with the economic
policies set by the People’s Republic of China (“PRC”).

China Demeter and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as “China
Demeter Group”) are principally engaged in (i) feedstock products
business; (i) money lending business; (iii) financial services business;
(iv) securities investment business; (v) food and beverage business;
and (vi) alcoholic beverage distribution business. As disclosed in the
third quarterly report of China Demeter for the nine months ended 30
September 2018, (i) the unaudited revenue and loss of China Demeter
for the nine months ended 30 September 2018 were approximately
HK$45.3 million and HK$15.1 million respectively; (i) the China Demeter
Group remained optimistic about the food and beverage market, and
would operate the food and beverage business with a flexible and
prudent approach; (iii) the China Demeter Group expected that the
acquisition in relation to operation of two restaurants serving Japanese
cuisine in Hong Kong in October 2018 would match its current strategy
for investing in the catering industry; and (iv) the China Demeter Group
also remained optimistic about the development potential of Hong
Kong’s money lending market and would take measures accordingly
to improve its overall operational efficiency and strengthen its revenue
base.

Lumina and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as “Lumina Group”)
are principally engaged in the provision of fire safety services in Hong
Kong. As disclosed in the third quarterly report of Lumina for the nine
months ended 31 December 2018, (i) the unaudited revenue and
profit of Lumina for the nine months ended 31 December 2018 were
HK$80.1 million and HK$14.5 million respectively; (i) the Lumina
Group’s capability of delivering a wide range of quality fire safety
solutions had helped building a solid and diversified customer base
comprising property owners and tenants, construction contractors and
property managers in the private sector and the government and non-
governmental organisations in the public sector; and (iii) the Lumina
Group would actively explore new business opportunities by keeping
track of any new projects through existing and new network.

Wit :

TEEFWE S

REBBERENBAR (SHEMREERER]) E2HF
BEERER B eEEREEEBR 2 A &Burcon
NutraScience Corporation f) 5B |18 & - MEA S gt &
ERBEHFNRE RUBE VERERAREIHE
%o MR EEEEEEE —2 - \FAA=THILN
BANPHBEREE  ((RERREE_T—/\FAh
A=+RIEN AR REERZIE CFeER B &
i A9 Bl 49 A 1,230,900,000 7 7T & 358,100,000 7 7T
(VREEFEESEEEREEEL RASELS
BRI FREHET ) - MR EAER  BLIREHEE -
EHEARRERRE ARREERETBREER &
(i) RIEEBREENES HEEEBRED  WEEES
FTEISEPE ARLRME ([HE ) ZECBERRRE—
o

EERHEMBAR (HEIEREE]) TBRE()FARE
MER (VREEL i) SRRBEL  (EFERE
EB VERERRDER RV)EBRDRDHER -
BUAEEHE—_ZT - \FAA=THLEABAE=ZF
EREABE  BEEBEE-_Z—-N\EhLA=+HIN
18 B 89 A 48 25 %z Wk S JE5 18 95 Bl 49 /% 45,300,000 7 7T &
15,100,000/ 7T (i) Bl 2 & B ¥ & i R 8k b T IS IR 5 54
BUEUAEETEEN I RCER M RRMET (i) =
BEEEHRNR T \FTAKEEEREBLEMHA
BAREZREMNES BSUAHEEURREREZR
TR RVBERERHEBREMSNEREND
ARFLBREE TS RIGEERE GRS LB L ER
R REEEBAER -

LEREMBAR (GHEIEEAEE) X EREEKRE
REEH L 2R - BNLERBEE-_T—N\F+=4
TH-ALNEAANE=FTERSHAEE  (LEEE
T N\F+ZA=t+—HILENBEANREEZRZER
i 153 B 4 80,100,000 7% 7T &2 14,500,000 7 7T, + (i) &5 &
SERHEBETZHNEGEEVLE2BAFRNENEEHE
v—{ABERZTENEFE  BELARFERINY
EEIREPL  BEAAFRMEETEA  URDEZ
FREBINBA R IEB AL Rl 4R EEBRRAEE
BERFBERRAMNHER  BRIERITOE -
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During the Year, no dividend income was received by the Group
from the investments in the above listed securities (2017: Nil).
Resulting from the volatile condition of the Hong Kong stock
market during the Year, a net fair value loss on financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss of approximately HK$2,021,000
(2017: approximately HK$3,418,000) was recognised from the
Group’s securities investments.

The objective of the Group’s investment in the listed securities
in Hong Kong is to achieve profit from the appreciation of the
market value of its invested securities and to receive dividend
income. The Directors expect that the stock market in Hong
Kong will remain volatile which may affect the performance of
the Group’s securities investments. The Board believes that the
performance of the securities investments of the Group will be
dependent on the financial and operating performance of the
investee companies and market sentiment, which are affected by
factors such as interest rate movements and performance of the
macro economy. The Group will continue to adopt a conservative
investment approach in its trading of listed securities in the Hong
Kong stock market and closely monitor the performance of its
securities investment portfolio.

Other investments

As at 31 December 2018, the Group had the following material
investments:

(a) Investment in an associate - Four Directions

Investment Limited (“FDIL”)

As at 31 December 2018, the Group held 100% interests
in DSE Cayman Limited, which in turn held approximately
26.87% equity interest in FDIL (together with its subsidiaries,
the “FDIL Group”). Through the investment in the FDIL Group
which is principally engaged in the provision of services in
relation to information technology, smartphone applications
development and digital marketing and the development of
information technology applications, the Group has expanded
and diversified its investments into the information technology
industry. During the Year, the loss of FDIL shared by the Group
amounted to approximately HK$2,104,000 (2017: approximately
HK$7,229,000). Looking ahead, the Group will continue to
monitor the operations of FDIL Group for the improvement of its
financial performance.
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RERN - AEBIWERE Lt FHEFRER
BREWMA(ZE—+F  8) - ARFRNE B
TEE  ERASENEHFEERRIZATE
B ABEZNEREENATEEFEED
572,021,000 BT (ZZF—+H% : 493,418,000
BIT) o

AEBERNFELTEFRENBENIDRER
BERFHMETETEIG N RESR LYK
A -BERHREERMEHERS  HAE¥
EAKEEAFRENKR - EFEME $%‘%

BESRENRABIRANFRERANY
BREBRBEARTIZRS - MZFTEZH
REPRLZBRBERASFAERTZE - AKEK
Z%ig?%ﬁﬁéé\ﬁﬁﬂxﬁﬁﬁii%igﬁ SR H) £

B WEYEEEFESREMANRE

HitbiR&E
RIB-N\F+ZA=+—H FEBEEFTIEKX
BE:

(a) K — B % 5.2 #RE—Four Directions
Investment Limited ([ FDIL_/)
RZE-NE+-_A=+—HB xE=EHE
DSE Cayman Limited #) 100% ## z + i1 DSE
Cayman Limited#5A FDIL GE R E i B A &) 4
ﬁ(WMLEID>%2GW%kﬁEFMLEI
FENERUEBEENRE  SEFHRERRR
35T B K BTG 4 5 DA N B AR B e A2 BT
BRI - BB FDILEEAIRE » AEE A
BAREEEREMBHIITENRE -FR -
NE B FE{LFDIL &8 %) £2,104,00078 7T (=
T—+ 1 : 497,229,000 7T) ° ‘*I ¥IN
EEGEEEIFDILEE M S E AN E
ERAE -



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

(b) Investment in a joint venture — Sky View Investment

Limited (“Sky View”), and information on the Contractual
Arrangements of Rolaner International Limited
(“Rolaner”), its subsidiaries and Rong Lang (as defined
below) (collectively as “Rolaner Group”)

As at 31 December 2018, the Group held 49% interest in Sky
View, which is the holding company of approximately 22%
interests in Rolaner acquired under the Rolaner Subscription
Agreement (as defined below).

During the Year, the Group shared the loss of Sky View
of approximately HK$16,733,000 (2017: approximately
HK$19,202,000). The loss of the joint venture primarily
represented (i) the impairment loss on its investment in Rolaner
recorded by the joint venture by comparing the recoverable
amount estimated using value-in-use with the carrying amount
of its interest in Rolaner; and (i) the operating losses of Rolaner
for the Year shared by the joint venture. In light of the market
potentials in the medical beauty industry in the PRC, the Group
will continue to hold its interest in Sky View and aim to enjoy the
economic benefits of the businesses of the Rolaner Group in the
future.

On 20 February 2016, Sky View, Winrange Investments Limited
(“Winrange”, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company) and
Amber Rose Holdings Limited (“Amber Rose”) entered into
an agreement (“Sky View Subscription Agreement”) for the
subscription of ordinary shares of Sky View (“Sky View Shares”)
by Winrange and Amber Rose respectively. Pursuant to the
Sky View Subscription Agreement, Winrange and Amber Rose
have agreed to subscribe for 390 Sky View Shares and 510
Sky View Shares at the subscription price of US$4,948,900
and US$5,151,000 respectively. Completion of the Sky View
Subscription Agreement took place immediately after its signing,
and Winrange became interested in 49% of the issued share
capital of Sky View and Sky View became a joint venture of
Winrange and Amber Rose.

(b)

TEEFWE S

R-—EEELATGZRE-XEREFRA
7] ([ X & _|) R % Bf Rolaner International
Limited ([ Rolaner.)) - B} /& 2 5 B %R
(EZ#E L T X)(#7#[Rolaner €8 |) &4 &
HZEH

ZE-)\F+ZA=1+—R AEBEFEXE
49% #E 7 + K [E A& 755 1R 1% Rolaner 32 & 17
# (T % R T30 WHE 2 Rolaner K9 4922% 1 %5
ZYERAF] e

RERA - NE B FE(L R EE1E4 16,733,000 %5
T (ZZT—+4F : £19,202,000/87T) - A& R
REIEBE2R()ERNEREEGFTRE S
FHER ERolaner i m M RMELER - &R
AR Rolaner X B 3R ERIE  RilEGE A
7] FE 1k Rolaner 2K F [E M4 & 518 © 5 A AP
BEIRNTENTSEBN  AEBEBEESSE
MNRER S - IS 1E B %855 B Rolaner &
B BB P o

RZZE—XRE-_A=-+H XE BEREE
BRAB([AE] ARRz—ME2ENEBR
7)) B Amber Rose Holdings Limited ([ Amber
Rose |) 5t 22 18 & Amber Rose 7 Bl i B & [E
2Bk ([REMRMD D) 5T ek ([ RERE
akl) o AR IK RIERIE % - 208 & Amber
Rose B [7] & % 7l 52 B 390 f% X [ A% 15 & 510
MR REE Rt - RIEE D 7RIl 72 4,948,900 % 7T K
5,151,000% T - RERE = ZBEEZRE T
B 2B B KIE B BT IR AR M) 49% 1E
= MAMER A& Z 18 & Amber Rose Z &% A
=) o
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After completion of the Sky View Subscription Agreement, on
20 February 2016, Sky View, Rolaner, Ace Choice Ventures
Limited, Legend Cosmo Consultants Limited, Mr. Ren Lingfeng
(“Mr. Ren”), Mr. Chen Rong (“Mr. Chen”), 85812 BRI (/&)
A BR A 7] (“Rong Lang”, unofficial English name being Rong
Lang Information Technology (Shanghai) Co., Limited) and % BA
PR (H8) BB AT (“Luo Lang”, unofficial English name
being Luo Lang Internet Technology (Shanghai) Co., Limited)
entered into an agreement (“Rolaner Subscription Agreement”),
pursuant to which Sky View had subscribed for 22,000,000
preferred shares in the share capital of Rolaner at the price
of US$10,000,000. Completion of the Rolaner Subscription
Agreement took place on 18 March 2016 and Sky View became
interested in approximately 22% of the enlarged issued share
capital of Rolaner. Rolaner is operating a mobile application “Mei
Li Shen Qi (3B 23)”, one of the largest online communities
and e-commerce platforms with millions of users for the medical
beauty industry in the PRC, in which the Directors consider to
have great market potentials. Details of the Sky View Subscription
Agreement and the Rolaner Subscription Agreement are
disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated 21
February 2016.

The businesses operated by Rong Lang, the PRC operating
company in Rolaner Group, are operated under contract-based
arrangements and/or structures (“Contractual Arrangements”) for
the purpose of enabling Rolaner, as a foreign investor, to control
and benefit from such PRC operating company in the foreign
restricted businesses in the PRC. Set out below are the details of
the Contractual Arrangements.

(i) Particulars of Rong Lang and its registered owners
Rong Lang is a limited liability company incorporated
in Shanghai, PRC on 20 May 2013. The registered
shareholders of Rong Lang are Mr. Ren (holding 75% of its
paid-up capital) and Mr. Chen (holding 25% of its paid-up
capital). It has a registered capital of RMB1 million which
has been paid up.
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(i)

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Description of Rong Lang's business activities

Rong Lang is primarily engaged in the mobile application
EBE 2 (Mei Li Shen Qi), one of the largest online
community and e-commerce platform with more than ten
million users for the medical beauty industry in the PRC.

Rong Lang also operates its website at www.meilimei.com.

Foreign ownership of internet-based businesses, such as
those engaged in the provision of internet information, is
highly regulated under current PRC laws. Foreign investors
are not allowed to own more than 50% of the equity
interests in a value-added telecommunications service
provider (except for e-commerce and certain other sectors)
and any such foreign investor must have experience
in providing value-added telecommunications services
overseas and maintain a good track record. However,
no written guidelines or implementing rules have been
publicly issued by the Ministry of Industry and Information
Technology of the PRC (2 A R R T2 A5 2L &6)
(“MIIT”) to specify the criterion of the “good track record”. As
Rolaner does not have any experience in providing value-
added telecommunications services overseas and maintain
a good track record, it is unable to directly acquire any
equity interests of Rong Lang.

The Circular on Strengthening the Administration of
Foreign Investment in and Operation of Value-added
Telecommunications Business ({5 B E 2 25 B8 7 038 4h
ERECEREEEEFEENRBA)), issued by the
MIIT in July 2006, prohibits domestic telecommunication
service providers from leasing, transferring or selling
telecommunications business operating licenses to any
foreign investors in any form, or providing any resources,
sites or facilities to any foreign investors for their illegal
operation of a telecommunications business in the PRC.
According to this circular, either the holders of a value-
added telecommunication services operation permit or their
shareholders must directly own the domain names and
trademarks used by such license holders in their provision
of value-added telecommunications services. The circular
also requires each license holder to have the necessary
facilities, including servers, for its approved business
operations and to maintain such facilities in the regions
covered by its license. If the holder of the value-added
telecommunications business operating license (1% {8 &
EETEEE TR E) (’ICP License”) (also generally known
as the “Internet content provider license”) fails to comply
with the requirements and also fails to remedy such non-
compliance within a specified period of time, the MIIT or its
local counterparts have the discretion to take administrative
measures against such license holder, including revoking its
ICP License.

(i)

TEEFWE S

R B T B i B
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
THBHWRE S

As Rong Lang is also providing mobile applications to
mobile device users, Rong Lang may be required to obtain
other applicable operating permits in addition to the ICP
License. Hence, Rong Lang has submitted its application
for the ICP Licence with Shanghai Communications
Administration (/8 T3 {5 % 2 ). The said application
was completed and Rong Lang had obtained the ICP
Licence with an effective period from 29 December 2017 to
29 December 2022.

The Contractual Arrangements are designed specifically to
confer upon Luo Lang the right to enjoy all the economic
benefits of Rong Lang, to exercise management control
over the operations of Rong Lang, and to prevent leakages
of assets and values of Rong Lang to the registered
shareholders of Rong Lang. Luo Lang is not obligated under
the Contractual Arrangements to provide any financial
support to Rong Lang. Where losses occurred to Rong
Lang, Luo Lang will not share the losses directly. In respect
of any limited liability company, under PRC Company Law
(‘ATFR), it is a basic principle that a shareholder’s liability in
respect of a company is limited to the registered capital for
which it has subscribed. Hence, even if a company incurs
loss to the extent that it becomes insolvent, its shareholder
is not under any legal obligation to bear any debt incurred
by the company or provide any additional capital to the
company (unless otherwise agreed by the shareholder).
In the current case, there is no shareholding relationship
between Luo Lang and Rong Lang, and similarly, there is no
legal obligation for Luo Lang to share any losses incurred by
Rong Lang.

Notwithstanding the above, since Rong Lang is expected
to contribute revenue to Luo Lang by way of making
payment of service fee to Luo Lang under the Contractual
Arrangements, any loss incurred by Rong Lang will have
an adverse impact on its ability to make such payment and
hence indirectly affecting Luo Lang’s financial performance
on a consolidated basis.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

(i) Summary of the major terms of the Control Documents
of the Contractual Arrangements
The control documents under the Contractual
Arrangements are: (1) the Exclusive Business Cooperation
Agreement; (2) the Exclusive Option Agreement; (3) the
Equity Pledge Agreement; and (4) the Power of Attorney
(collectively, “Control Documents”).

(1)

Exclusive Business Cooperation Agreement

The Exclusive Business Cooperation Agreement
was entered into by and among Luo Lang, Rong
Lang, Mr. Ren and Mr. Chen on 20 February 2016.
Pursuant to the Exclusive Business Cooperation
Agreement, Rong Lang has agreed to engage Luo
Lang as its exclusive consultant and service provider.
Accordingly, Luo Lang shall provide business support,
technical services and consultancy services, including
without limitation all or any services which fall within
the business scope of Rong Lang. Pursuant to the
Exclusive Business Cooperation Agreement, Rong
Lang shall pay to Luo Lang a service fee on a monthly
basis that equals to the entire monthly revenue of
Rong Lang, after deducting costs and expenses, tax
and other reserved expenditures as required under
applicable laws (save for the service fee payable to
Luo Lang thereunder). Thus, all economic benefits
of Rong Lang will belong to Luo Lang. In addition,
the parties to the Exclusive Business Cooperation
Agreement agreed, and Mr. Ren and Mr. Chen,
being all the registered shareholders of Rong Lang,
have confirmed that Luo Lang shall have the right
to manage the business of Rong Lang, dispose of
its assets and is not liable to any loss incurred by
Rong Lang. The parties have also agreed that Rong
Lang shall provide its audited financial statements (as
certified by an independent auditors firm acceptable to
Luo Lang) within 90 days from the date to which the
relevant financial year ends to Luo Lang, and Luo Lang
shall also be entitled to inspect the books and records
and obtain copies thereof if it so wishes. The Exclusive
Business Cooperation Agreement is for an indefinite
term commencing from the date of the agreement,
until it is terminated (i) according to the applicable PRC
laws or (i) by Luo Lang by giving prior written notice.
Rong Lang is not contractually entitled to terminate
the Exclusive Business Cooperation Agreement.

(i)
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EHEFWE S

Exclusive Option Agreement

Luo Lang, Mr. Ren, Mr. Chen and Rong Lang have
entered into the Exclusive Option Agreement dated
20 February 2016, pursuant to which: (i) Mr. Ren
and Mr. Chen have irrevocably granted to Luo Lang
irrevocable and exclusive options to purchase by Luo
Lang or person(s) designated by it all or part of the
equity interest owned by them now or in the future in
Rong Lang (“Equity Option”), and such Equity Option
shall be exercised by Luo Lang in the manner and at
any time Luo Lang solely determines; (i) Rong Lang
has granted to Luo Lang irrevocable and exclusive
options to purchase by Luo Lang or person(s)
designated by it all or part of the assets (meaning
all the tangible and intangible assets of Rong Lang,
including without limitation the fixed assets, current
assets, equity interests in investments, benefits under
contracts) now or in the future owned by Rong Lang
(“Assets Option”), and such Assets Option shall be
exercised by Luo Lang in the manner and at any time
Luo Lang solely determines; (i) Luo Lang shall, to
the extent permitted by PRC laws and regulations,
and when the PRC laws and regulations allow wholly
foreign owned enterprises to operate the business of
Rong Lang directly, exercise the Equity Option and
Assets Option as soon as possible. In the event of the
death and loss of civil capacity of Mr. Ren or Mr. Chen,
Luo Lang is entitled to, to the largest extent permitted
by PRC laws, exercise its rights under the Exclusive
Option Agreement with the legal successor or
personal representatives of Mr. Ren or Mr. Chen; and
(iv) the consideration for the equity interest payable by
Luo Lang under the Equity Option shall be RMB100
or such minimum purchase price permitted by PRC
laws and regulations after deducting the requisite
taxes. The consideration for the assets payable by Luo
Lang under the Assets Option shall be such minimum
purchase price permitted by PRC laws and regulations
after deducting the requisite taxes.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Under the Exclusive Option Agreement, Mr. Ren and
Mr. Chen (as the registered shareholders of Rong
Lang) and Rong Lang have jointly and severally
undertaken, among other things, that they shall not
do or allow to be done (among other things as the
case may be) the following acts: amend the articles of
Rong Lang, alter its registered share capital or capital
structure, sell, transfer, charge or otherwise dispose
of the assets and legal and other benefits in Rong
Lang or create encumbrances thereon. Should Rong
Lang be liquidated, Mr. Ren and Mr. Chen shall pay (or
procure the payment) to Luo Lang or its designee(s)
all residual values of Rong Lang. In addition, Mr.
Ren and Mr. Chen shall not without the prior written
consent of Luo Lang cause or allow any guarantee
or liability or loans to be incurred on Rong Lang, and
shall not make any dividends or distributable interest
to its shareholders. Mr. Ren and Mr. Chen have also
undertaken that they shall cause persons nominated
by Luo Lang to be appointed or removed as directors
and senior management of Rong Lang. In particular,
Mr. Ren and Mr. Chen jointly and severally confirmed
that they shall (i) on the request of the designee of Luo
Lang immediately and unconditionally transfer their
equity interests in Rong Lang and any priority right
of any shareholder of Rong Lang to purchase such
equity interests; and (i) maintain their citizenship and
nationality of the PRC.

Under the Exclusive Option Agreement, Mr. Ren and
Mr. Chen have also confirmed that the equity interests
in Rong Lang now and in the future do not fall within
the communal property (£ [ 81 ) or inheritable
property (7] 4 7% B EE) of their spouse respectively
and that such equity interests can neither be severed
nor inherited.

The Exclusive Option Agreement is for an indefinite
term commencing from the date of the agreement,
until all the equity interests held by Mr. Ren and
Mr. Chen are, pursuant to the Exclusive Option
Agreement, legally transferred to Luo Lang or its
designee(s).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EHEFWE S

©)

Equity Pledge Agreement

Luo Lang, Mr. Ren, Mr. Chen and Rong Lang entered
into the Equity Pledge Agreement on 20 February
2016, pursuant to which Mr. Ren and Mr. Chen shall
pledge all of their respective equity interests in Rong
Lang to Luo Lang to secure the performance of all
their obligations and the obligations of Rong Lang
under the Contractual Arrangements. Pursuant to
the Equity Pledge Agreement, Luo Lang has a first
priority pledge on all of the equity interests in Rong
Lang held by Mr. Ren and Mr. Chen. Under the Equity
Pledge Agreement, if Mr. Ren and/or Mr. Chen and/
or Rong Lang breaches any obligation under the
Contractual Arrangements (among other things),
Luo Lang, as the pledgee, is entitled to request Mr.
Ren and/or Mr. Chen to transfer the pledged equity
interests to Luo Lang. In addition, pursuant to the
Equity Pledge Agreement, each of Mr. Ren and/or Mr.
Chen undertakes to Luo Lang, among other things,
not to transfer his equity interests in Rong Lang and
not to create any pledge thereon without Luo Lang’s
prior written consent. In addition, they shall not alter
the registered capital or capital structure of Rong
Lang and shall execute further documents to pledge
the equity interests they shall receive after the signing
of the Equity Pledge Agreement. The Equity Pledge
Agreement is for an indefinite term commencing on
the date of the agreement, until () all the services fees
under the Exclusive Business Cooperation Agreement
are fully settled and (i) all obligations of Rong Lang
under the Contractual Arrangements have been
fulfilled.

Power of Attorney

Mr. Ren and Mr. Chen have severally issued a
power of attorney to Luo Lang on 20 February
2016, pursuant to which they irrevocably authorised
Luo Lang (including the successor or liquidator of
Luo Lang in the event of its liquidation) to exercise
all of their rights and powers as shareholders of
Rong Lang, including (i) rights to convene and
attend shareholders’ meeting and sign minutes or
resolutions; (i) rights to exercise voting rights in a
shareholders’ meeting including without limitation
to vote for resolutions for the disposal, transfer or
pledge of all or part of their equity interests in Rong
Lang; (iii) rights to designate and appoint the legal
representative (chairman of the board), directors,
supervisors, chief executive officer (or general
manager) and other senior officers; and (iv) rights to file
documents with relevant governmental authorities or
regulatory bodies.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

(iv)  Manner of settlement of disputes which may arise from

V)

the Contractual Arrangements

Pursuant to the Contractual Arrangements, the dispute
resolution clauses provide that any dispute arising from
the interpretation and implementation of the Control
Documents should first be resolved through negotiation,
failing which any party may submit the said dispute to the
Shanghai International Economic and Trade Arbitration
Commission (“SHIAC”) with a view to resolving the dispute
through arbitration in accordance with the arbitration rules
of the SHIAC. The results of the arbitration shall be final and
binding on all relevant parties.

Risks relating to the Contractual Arrangements

The PRC government may determine that the corporate
structure of the Rolaner Group or the Contractual
Arrangements is not or may not be in compliance with any
existing or future applicable PRC laws or regulations.

Rolaner and Luo Lang rely on the Contractual
Arrangements to control and obtain the economic benefits
from Rong Lang, the operating entity in the PRC, which may
not be as effective as in providing operational control as
direct ownership.

The registered shareholders of Rong Lang may have
conflicts of interest with the Rolaner Group, which may
materially and adversely affect the business and financial
conditions of the Rolaner Group.

The Contractual Arrangements between Luo Lang and
Rong Lang may be subject to scrutiny by the PRC tax
authorities and any finding that Luo Lang or Rong Lang
owes additional taxes could substantially reduce the
consolidated net income of Rolaner and the value of the
Group’s investment in Rolaner.

Substantial uncertainties exist with respect to the
interpretation and implementation of draft Foreign
Investment Law ({NB & & A E 28)) of the PRC and how
it may impact the viability of the current corporate structure
of the Rolaner Group.

And last but not least, the Group does not have control
over the Rolaner Group and will rely on Luo Lang to
exercise control over Rong Lang through the Contractual
Arrangements.

The Company will monitor the relevant PRC laws and
regulations relevant to the Contractual Arrangements and
will take all necessary actions to protect the Company’s
interests in Rong Lang.
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(vi)  Material change
The Directors confirmed that there has been no material
change to the Contractual Arrangements as at 31
December 2018.

(vii) - Unwinding of the Contractual Arrangements
As at the date of this annual report, there was no unwinding
of any of the Contractual Arrangements or failure to
unwind when the restrictions that led to the adoption of the
Contractual Arrangement were removed.

(vii)) Revenue and assets subject to the Contractual

Arrangements

As at 31 December 2018, the Group held 49% interest
in Sky View which in turn held approximately 22%
interest in Rolaner Group. This investment was recorded
as an investment in a joint venture as at 31 December
2018. During the Year, the Group shared the loss of a
joint venture of approximately HK$16,733,000 (2017:
approximately HK$19,202,000). As at 31 December 2018,
the book value of the Group’s investment in joint venture
was approximately HK$172,000 (2017: approximately
HK$16,905,000), representing approximately 0.1% of the
Group’s total assets and approximately 0.1% of the Group’s
net assets.

(c) Equity investment (not held for trading) - China

Parenting Network Holdings Limited (“CPN”)

As at 31 December 2018, the Group held 16,538,000 ordinary
shares of CPN (“CPN Shares”), the issued shares of which are
listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange (Stock Code:
1736), being approximately 1.61% of the total issued shares
of CPN. CPN, together with its subsidiaries, operate an online
platform focusing on the CBM (children, babies, and maternity)
market in the PRC and are mainly engaged in (i) provision
of marketing and promotional service; and (i) e-commerce
business. On 27 September 2018, the Stock Exchange
approved the transfer of CPN’s listing from GEM (Stock Code:
8361) to the Main Board of the Stock Exchange. The Group will
continue to hold the CPN Shares for dividend income.

The CPN Shares were measured at fair value at approximately
HK$4,631,000 as at 31 December 2018, based on their last
closing price quoted on the Stock Exchange. During the Year,
the fair value loss of the CPN Shares transferred to the financial
assets measured at fair value through other comprehensive
income reserve of the Group was approximately HK$5,292,000.
During the Year, a dividend income of approximately HK$25,000
was received from this investment.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

FINANCIAL REVIEW

The Board has set out the following key financial performance
indicators to measure and monitor the Group’s business performance

for the Year:

Revenue growth rate (%)
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EHEFWE S

Revenue, gross profit and gross profit margin

Revenue of the Group for the Year was approximately HK$70,126,000
(2017: approximately HK$56,885,000), representing an increase of
approximately HK$13,241,000 or 23.3% as compared to that of the
last financial year. The increase in revenue of the Group during the Year
was mainly due to the increase in revenue generated from the financial
trading software solutions business and the money lending business.

Gross profit of the Group for the Year was approximately
HK$50,304,000 (2017: approximately HK$41,503,000), representing
an increase of approximately HK$8,801,000 or 21.2% as compared
to that of the last financial year, which was in line with the increase
in revenue. Gross profit margin of the Group for the Year was
approximately 71.7% (2017: approximately 73.0%).

Administrative expenses

The Group’s administrative expenses for the Year amounted to
approximately HK$40,883,000 (2017: approximately HK$41,962,000),
representing a decrease of approximately HK$1,079,000 or 2.6% as
compared to that of the last financial year. The decrease was primarily
attributable to the combined effects of (i) the increase in overall
operating expenses as a result of the continuous expansion of the
Group’s businesses; and (i) the decrease in equity-settled share-based
payments recognised for the share options granted by the Company of
approximately HK$6,843,000.

Loss for the year

The Group recorded a net loss after tax of approximately
HK$15,203,000 for the Year (2017: approximately HK$46,150,000).
The decrease in the Group’s net loss was mainly attributable to the
combined effects of (i) the absence of gains on disposal of available-
for-sale investments, subsidiaries and an associate and profit
guarantee income, all being one-off in nature, during the Year; (i) the
absence of impairment losses on available-for-sale investments and
investment in an associate, all being one-off in nature, during the
Year; and (iii) the decrease in equity-settled share-based payments
recognised for the share options granted by the Company of
approximately HK$6,843,000.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

As at 31 December 2018, the Group’s cash and bank balances
and non-pledged time deposits were, respectively, approximately
HK$69,004,000 (2017: approximately HK$148,616,000) and
HK$20,000,000 (2017: Nil). Net current assets of the Group as at
31 December 2018 amounted to approximately HK$168,758,000
(2017: approximately HK$150,618,000). As at 31 December 2018,
approximately 99.9% of the Group’s cash and cash equivalents were
denominated in Hong Kong dollars, while the remaining balance was
denominated in Renminbi and United States dollars. Current ratio of
the Group, which was defined as total current assets divided by total
current liabilities, was approximately 4.7 times as at 31 December
2018 (2017: approximately 5.1 times).

As at 31 December 2018, the Group had no outstanding bank and
other borrowings (2017: Nil). As at 31 December 2018, the gearing
ratio of the Group, which was defined as total borrowings divided by
total assets, was not applicable due to the absence of any borrowing
undertaken by the Group as at 31 December 2018 (2017: Not
applicable).

TREASURY AND FUNDING POLICIES

The Group adopts a prudent approach with respect to its treasury and
funding policies, and its financial and fundraising activities are subject
to effective management and supervision. The Group manages its
capital to ensure that the entities in the Group will be able to continue
as a going concern while maximising the return to the Shareholders
through optimisation of the debt and equity balance.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE EXPOSURE

During the years ended 31 December 2018 and 2017, the business
activities of the Group were mainly denominated in Hong Kong
dollars. The Directors did not consider the Group was exposed to any
significant foreign currency exchange risks.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 December 2018, the Group did not have any contingent
liabilities (2017: Nil).

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

As at 31 December 2018, the Group did not have any significant
capital commitments (2017: Nil).

CHARGES ON THE GROUP’S ASSETS

As at 31 December 2018, the Group did not have any material charge
on assets (2017: Nil).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EHEFWE S

MATERIAL ACQUISITION AND DISPOSAL

On 9 August 2018, Lucky Cheer Investments Limited (“Lucky Cheer”)
(@ wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company) and two independent
third parties (“Vendors”) entered into a sale and purchase agreement,
pursuant to which Lucky Cheer has agreed to purchase, and the
Vendors have agreed to sell, 100% of the issued share capital of Darts
Connect International Limited (“Darts”) at the aggregate consideration
of HK$21,600,000 (“Consideration”) (subject to adjustments), in which
HK$10,800,000 was paid in cash at completion and the remaining
HK$10,800,000 shall be paid subject to the achievement of the
audited net profit before tax of Darts for the Year (“2018 Audited
Profit”) being not less than HK$4,000,000 (“‘Guaranteed Profit”),
as guaranteed by the Vendors (“Darts Acquisition”). On 9 August
2018, the Darts Acquisition was completed and Darts became a
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company. Darts is a gaming product
development company incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability,
which designs, creates, markets, sells and distributes electronic
dartboards with wireless connection to mobile applications. Details of
the Darts Acquisition are set out in the announcement of the Company
dated 9 August 2018. The Group commenced the trading of gaming
products following the completion of the Darts Acquisition. Based
on the audited financial statements of Darts for the Year, the 2018
Audited Profit amounted to approximately HK$217,000 and hence
the Guaranteed Profit was not met. Accordingly, the amount of the
Consideration is adjusted to HK$10,800,000 and the Company is not
obliged to settle the remaining Consideration of HK$10,800,000 to the
Vendors.

Save as disclosed above and the disposal of investment properties
of the Group as set out in the section headed “Assets investments”
above, the Group did not have any material acquisition or disposal
transaction during the Year.

FUTURE PLANS FOR MATERIAL
INVESTMENTS AND CAPITAL ASSETS

As at the date of this annual report, the Group does not have any
concrete plan for material investments or capital assets for the coming
year. Nonetheless, if any potential investment opportunity arises and is
identified in the coming year, the Group will conduct a feasibility study
and prepare implementation plans to consider whether it is beneficial to
the Company and the Shareholders as a whole.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

CAPITAL STRUCTURE

As at 31 December 2018, the Group had shareholders’ equity
of approximately HK$190,695,000 (2017: approximately
HK$207,774,000). As at 31 December 2018, the capital of the
Company comprised ordinary shares only.

DIVIDEND

The Board does not recommend the payment of any dividend for the
Year (2017: Nil).

EMPLOYEE AND REMUNERATION POLICY

As at 31 December 2018, the Group had 62 employees (2017: 61).
The Group continues to maintain and upgrade the capabilities of
its workforce by providing them with adequate and regular training.
The Group remunerates its employees mainly based on industry
practices and individual performance and experience. On top of regular
remuneration, discretionary bonus and share options may be granted
to eligible staff by reference to the Group’s performance as well as the
individual performance. Total employee benefits expense, including
directors’ emoluments, was approximately HK$32,161,000 for the
Year (2017: approximately HK$36,571,000).

The remuneration of the Directors are determined by the Board,
under the recommendation from the remuneration committee
(“Remuneration Committee”) of the Company, with reference to the
background, qualification, experience, duties and responsibilities of
the respective Directors within the Group and the prevailing market
conditions.

The Company adopted a share option scheme pursuant to an ordinary
resolution of all the then Shareholders passed on 10 September
2013 and the Board is authorised, at its absolute discretion, to grant
options to eligible participants including (a) any full-time or part-time
employee of any member of the Group; (b) any consultant or adviser
of any member of the Group; (c) any director (including executive, non-
executive and independent non-executive directors) of any member
of the Group; (d) any substantial shareholder of the Group; or () any
distributor, contractor, supplier, agent, customer, business partner
or service provider of any member of the Group. Details of the share
options granted and outstanding during the Year are set out in the
paragraphs headed “Share Option Scheme” on pages 65 to 68 of this
annual report.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EHEFWE S

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

Operational risks

The Group is exposed to operational risks in relation to each business
division of the Group. To manage operational risks, the management
of each business division is responsible for monitoring the operation
and assessing operational risks of their respective business divisions.
They are responsible for implementing the Group’s risk management
policies and procedures and shall report any irregularities in connection
with operation to the Directors and seek for directions. The Group
emphasises on ethical value and prevention of fraud and bribery and
has established a whistleblower program, including communication
with other departments and business divisions and units, to report any
irregularities. In this regard, the Directors consider that the Group’s
operational risks have been effectively mitigated.

Financial risks

The Group is exposed to credit risks, liquidity risks, market
risks (particularly equity price risks) and risks under Contractual
Arrangements, in which the details are summarised as follows:

Credit risks

In order to minimise credit risks, the Directors closely monitor the
overall level of credit exposure, and the management is responsible
for the determination of credit approvals and monitoring the
implementation of the debt collection procedure to ensure that follow-
up action is taken to recover overdue debts. In addition, the Group
reviews the recoverable amount of each individual trade debt at the
end of each reporting period to ensure that adequate impairment
loss is made for irrecoverable amounts. In this regard, the Directors
consider that the Group’s credit risks have been significantly reduced.

Liquidity risks

The Directors have built an appropriate liquidity risk management
framework to meet the Group’s short, medium and long-term funding
and liquidity management requirements. In the management of
liquidity risks, the Group monitors and maintains a level of cash and
cash equivalents deemed adequate by the management to finance
the Group’s operations and mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash
flows. In this regard, the Directors consider that the Group’s liquidity
risks have been effectively managed.

Market risks

The Group is exposed to market risks, particularly, the equity price
risks mainly through its investments in listed equity securities. The
management manages this exposure by closely monitoring the price
movements and the changes in market conditions that may affect the
value of these investments. In this regard, the Directors consider that
the Group’s market risks have been effectively mitigated.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Risks under Contractual Arrangements

The Group is exposed to certain risks relating to the Contractual
Arrangements formed under the Group’s interest in the Rolaner
Group. Please refer to the paragraphs headed “Risks relating to the
Contractual Arrangements” under “Other investments” on page 20 of
this annual report for details.

PROSPECT

Fintech or financial technology has already been reshaping the financial
services in Hong Kong and enhancing the operational efficiency of
enterprises. Following the development of the Guangdong-Hong
Kong-Macao Greater Bay Area, Hong Kong will continue to be the
best platform for fundraising and creating promising value to the
financial services sector in Hong Kong. In view of the above, the
Group foresees a prospering advantage of information technology to
the provision of financial services. With the auspicious opportunities
arising from innovative trading solutions inventions in the market, the
Group will strive to further strengthen its business in the provision of
financial trading software solutions. The Group’s principal operating
subsidiary, iAsia, will continue running the core business of the Group.
By being financially prepared to enhance iAsia’s system, the Group
hopes to attract more customers with an enhanced system to seize
opportunities for business expansion and create higher returns.

The money lending business is another growing business segment
which has steadily generated income for the Group. In the coming
future, the Group will devote more financial resources to its money
lending business and aim for a better revenue growth, while
implementing a prudent credit control policy and paying attention to
credit risks in connection with corporate debts to balance the risk
management and growth of the Group’s money lending business.

The Group believes diversification of its business segments can
maintain a healthy financial profile and promote a sustainable growth
of the Group. In the future, the Group will actively seize cooperation
and acquisition opportunities with more business partners in various
fields to expand its business scales and bring sustainable returns to
the Shareholders. The Group will continue to strive for excellence
in its products and services, in order to maintain its international
competitiveness and enhance its growth potential in the fintech
industry.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

ERELIRSE

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company has adopted the code provisions set out in the
Corporate Governance Code contained in Appendix 15 to the GEM
Listing Rules (“CG Code”) as its code of corporate governance.
During the Year, the Company complied with all the applicable code
provisions as set out in the CG Code then in force, except for the
deviations mentioned in the section headed “Chairman and chief
executive officer” on page 34 of this annual report.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding securities
transactions by Directors on terms no less exacting than the required
standard of dealings set out in Rules 5.48 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing
Rules. Having made specific enquiry of all Directors, all Directors
have confirmed that they have complied with the required standard of
dealings and the code of conduct regarding securities transactions by
Directors adopted by the Company during the Year.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Composition of the Board

As at the date of this annual report, the Board consists of four
executive Directors namely Mr. Chan Wai Lung, Ms. Lam Ching Yee,
Ms. Lin Ting and Mr. Shi Shaowu (who was appointed on 16 May
2018), a non-executive Director namely Mr. Lo Yu Man (who was
appointed on 9 October 2018), and three independent non-executive
Directors namely Mr. Lam Kai Yeung, Ms. Lee Kwun Ling, May Jean
and Mr. Zhong Shi. Mr. Fung Ka Lok Adams retired as a non-executive
Director with effect from 25 June 2018 and Mr. Ng Wing Cheong
Stephen resigned as a non-executive Director with effect from 9
October 2018. The Board was chaired by Mr. Chan Wai Lung during
the Year and as at the date of this annual report.

As at the date of this annual report, none of the Directors have any
relationship (including financial, business, family or other material/

relevant relationship) with each other.

The biographical details of all the Directors are set out on pages 45 to
48 of this annual report.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

Functions and responsibilities of the Board

The Board is collectively responsible for overseeing the management
of business, strategic decisions and financial performance of the
Company for the best interests of the Shareholders. The Board has
established various Board committees and has delegated to these
Board committees various responsibilities as set out in their respective
terms of reference. All Directors have carried out their duties in good
faith and in compliance with the standards of applicable laws and
regulations, and have acted in the interests of the Company and the
Shareholders as a whole at all times.

The Board takes responsibility for all major matters of the Company,
including the approval and monitoring of all policy matters, overall
strategies and budgets, internal control and risk management systems,
material transactions (particularly those that may involve conflicts of
interest), financial information, appointment of Directors and other
significant financial and operational matters.

During the Year, seventeen Board meetings were held to perform the
abovementioned duties and responsibilities and details of attendance
of each Board member are set out in the section headed “Attendance
of Directors at Meetings” on page 39 of this annual report.

All Directors have full and timely access to all relevant information
as well as the advice and services of the company secretary of
the Company (“Company Secretary”), with a view to ensuring that
the Board’s procedures and all applicable rules and regulations
are followed. Each Director is normally able to seek independent
professional advice in appropriate circumstances at the Company’s
expense, upon making request to the Board.

Delegation of powers

The Board delegates the day-to-day management authority,
administration and operation of the Group to the executive Directors
and the senior management of the Group, while reserving certain key
matters in strategic decision making for its approval. When the Board
delegates certain aspects of its management and administration
functions to management, it gives clear directions as to the powers of
management, in particular, with respect to the circumstances where
management needs to report back to and obtains prior approval from
the Board before making decisions or entering into any commitments
on behalf of the Group. During the Year, the executive Directors
and the senior management of the Group provided all members of
the Board with monthly updates pursuant to code provision C.1.2
of the CG Code while the Board regularly reviewed its arrangement
on delegation of authority and responsibilities to ensure that such
delegations are appropriate in view of the Group’s prevailing
circumstances.
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Directors’ appointment and re-election

The appointment of a new Director is made on the recommendation of
the nomination committee (“Nomination Committee”) of the Company
or by the Shareholders in general meetings. Any Director appointed
by the Board to fill a casual vacancy shall hold office only until the first
general meeting of the Company after his/her appointment and be
subject to re-election at such meeting. Any Director appointed by the
Board as an addition to the existing Board shall hold office only until the
next following annual general meeting of the Company and shall then
be eligible for re-election.

Each of Mr. Chan Wai Lung (an executive Director and the chairman of
the Board), Ms. Lam Ching Yee (an executive Director), Ms. Lin Ting (an
executive Director), Mr. Fung Ka Lok Adams (a non-executive Director
who retired on 25 June 2018) and Mr. Ng Wing Cheong Stephen (a
non-executive Director who resigned on 9 October 2018) has entered
into a service contract with the Company for a term of one year
commencing from 1 January 2018 to 31 December 2018 (both days
inclusive). Mr. Shi Shaowu (an executive Director appointed on 16 May
2018) has entered into a service contract with the Company for the
period from 16 May 2018 to 31 December 2018 (both days inclusive).
Mr. Lo Yu Man (a non-executive Director appointed on 9 October
2018) has entered into an appointment agreement with the Company
for the period from 9 October 2018 to 31 December 2018 (both days
inclusive). Each of Mr. Chan Wai Lung, Ms. Lam Ching Yee, Ms. Lin
Ting, Mr. Shi Shaowu and Mr. Lo Yu Man has been re-appointed for a
term of one year on the same terms commencing on 1 January 2019
and ending on 31 December 2019 (both days inclusive).

Currently, all independent non-executive Directors are appointed for
a specific term pursuant to code provision A.4.1 of the CG Code.
Mr. Lam Kai Yeung, who has entered into a service contract with the
Company for the period from 24 June 2017 to 31 December 2018
(both days inclusive), has been re-appointed for a term of 12 months
commencing from 1 January 2019 to 31 December 2019 (both days
inclusive). Ms. Lee Kwun Ling, May Jean, who has entered into a
service contract with the Company for the period from 26 September
2017 to 31 December 2018 (both days inclusive), has been re-
appointed for a term of 12 months commencing from 1 January 2019
to 31 December 2019 (both days inclusive). Mr. Zhong Shi, who has
entered into a service contract with the Company for a term of 12
months commencing from 1 January 2018 to 31 December 2018
(both days inclusive), has been re-appointed for a term of 12 months
commencing from 1 January 2019 to 31 December 2019 (both days
inclusive).

All Directors are subject to retirement by rotation at least once every
three years pursuant to code provision A.4.2 of the CG Code. By virtue
of article 112 of the articles of association of the Company, the Board
shall have the power from time to time and at any time to appoint
any person as a Director either to fill a casual vacancy on the Board
or as an additional Director provided that the number of Directors so
appointed shall not exceed the maximum number determined from
time to time by the Shareholders in general meeting of the Company.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

Pursuant to article 108(a) of the articles of association of the Company,
at each annual general meeting of the Company, one-third of the
Directors for the time being shall retire from office by rotation and
all such retiring Directors being eligible, will offer themselves for
re-election. Details of the Directors to be retired by rotation and,
where applicable, subject to re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting of the Company will be contained in the circular
to be despatched to the Shareholders in due course. None of the
Directors who are being proposed for re-election at the forthcoming
annual general meeting of the Company has a service contract or an
appointment agreement with the Company which is not determinable
by the Company or any of its subsidiaries within one year without
payment of compensation, other than statutory compensation.

Independent non-executive Directors

The Company has been in compliance with Rules 5.05(1) and (2), and
5.05A of the GEM Listing Rules during the Year, in which the Company
has three independent non-executive Directors, representing at
least one-third of the Board. Among the three independent non-
executive Directors, Mr. Lam Kai Yeung has appropriate professional
qualifications or accounting or related financial management expertise.

The Company has received from each of the independent non-
executive Directors an annual confirmation of his/her independence
pursuant to Rule 5.09 of the GEM Listing Rules and the Company
considers all the independent non-executive Directors are or have
remained independent.

Nomination policy

The Board has adopted a nomination policy (“Nomination Policy”).
Such policy aims to improve transparency around the criteria and
procedure adopted by the Nomination Committee in selecting and
recommending candidates as Directors and to ensure that the Board
has a balance of skills, experience and diversity of perspectives
appropriate to the requirements of the Company’s business. Selection
of candidates shall be based on a range of criteria, including but
not limited to, integrity and reputation, professional qualifications,
skills, knowledge and experience that are relevant to the Company’s
business and corporate strategy, gender, age, cultural and educational
background, ethnicity, and length of service. The Nomination
Committee shall convene a meeting to discuss and consider the
recommendation of any candidate to the Board for appointment,
election or re-election as a Director by the Board or at a general
meeting of the Company.
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Board diversity policy

The Board has adopted a board diversity policy (“Board Diversity
Policy”) in accordance with the requirements set out in the CG Code.
Such policy aims to set out the approach to achieve diversity on
the Board. Accordingly, all Board appointments shall be based on
meritocracy, and candidates shall be considered against objective
criteria, having due regard for the benefits of diversity on the Board.
Selection of candidates shall be based on a range of diversity
perspectives, including but not limited to, gender, age, cultural and
educational background, ethnicity, professional experience, skills,
knowledge and length of service. The ultimate decision shall be
based on the merit and contribution the selected candidates could
bring to the Board. The Nomination Committee, from time to time,
oversees the implementation of the Board Diversity Policy, and
reviews, as appropriate, the Board Diversity Policy to ensure the
effectiveness of the Board Diversity Policy and continues to give
adequate consideration to these measurable objectives when making
recommendations of candidates for appointment to the Board.

Dividend policy

The Board has adopted a dividend policy (“Dividend Policy”). Dividends
may be paid out by way of cash or by other means that the Directors
consider appropriate. Declaration and payment of any dividends would
require the recommendation of the Board and will be at its discretion.
In addition, any final dividends for a financial year will be subject to
the approval of the Shareholders. A decision to declare or to pay any
dividends in the future, and the amount of any dividends, depends on
a number of factors, including the results of operations and financial
condition of the Group, the payment by the Company’s subsidiaries
of cash dividends to the Company, and other factors the Board may
deem relevant. Declaration and payment of dividends by the Company
is subject to compliance with applicable laws and regulations including
the laws of the Cayman Islands and the articles of association of the
Company.

The Board will review the Dividend Policy from time to time and may
exercise its sole and absolute discretion to update, amend and/or

modify the Dividend Policy at any time as it deems fit and necessary.

There is no assurance that dividends will be declared or paid in any
particular amount for any given period.
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Chairman and chief executive officer

According to code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code, the roles of the
chairman and the chief executive officer should be separate and should
not be performed by the same individual. During the Year, the role
of the chairman was performed by Mr. Chan Wai Lung. During the
Year, the office of the chief executive officer of the Company remained
vacated, since the Company has not been able to identify a suitable
candidate for the position.

However, the Board will keep reviewing the current structure of the
Board from time to time and should any candidate with suitable
knowledge, skill and experience be identified, the Company will make
appointment to fill the position as appropriate.

Continuing professional development

According to code provision A.6.5 of the CG Code, all Directors shall
participate in continuous professional development to develop and
refresh their knowledge and skills to ensure their contribution to the
Board remains informed and relevant.

During the Year, each of the Directors received regular updates and
presentations on changes and developments to the Group’s business
and to the legislative and regulatory environments in which the
Group operates, and was also encouraged to attend relevant training
courses. During the Year, each of Mr. Chan Wai Lung, Ms. Lam Ching
Yee, Ms. Lin Ting, Mr. Shi Shaowu (appointed on 16 May 2018), Mr.
Lo Yu Man (appointed on 9 October 2018), Mr. Fung Ka Lok Adams
(retired on 25 June 2018), Mr. Ng Wing Cheong Stephen (resigned on
9 October 2018), Mr. Lam Kai Yeung, Ms. Lee Kwun Ling, May Jean
and Mr. Zhong Shi participated in appropriate continuous professional
development activities by way of attending training or reading materials
relevant to the Group’s business, the GEM Listing Rules or directors’
duties, and provided his or her training records to the Company on a
yearly basis.
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Directors’ and officers’ liabilities insurance and
indemnity

The Company has arranged for appropriate insurance covering the
liabilities in respect of any legal action against the Directors that may
arise out of the corporate activities, so as to comply with the CG Code.
The insurance coverage is reviewed on an annual basis.

BOARD COMMITTEES

1. Audit Committee

The Company established the audit committee (“Audit
Committee”) of the Company on 10 September 2013 with written
terms of reference posted on the websites of GEM and of the
Company. Such written terms of reference were revised and
adopted by the Board on 29 December 2015 in accordance
with the revised CG Code taking effect on 1 January 2016. The
primary duties of the Audit Committee are, among other matters,
to review the Company’s financial information, and to monitor
the Company’s financial reporting system, risk management and
internal control systems.

During the Year and as at the date of this annual report, the
Audit Committee comprised three independent non-executive
Directors, namely Mr. Lam Kai Yeung, Ms. Lee Kwun Ling, May
Jean and Mr. Zhong Shi, and the Audit Committee was chaired
by Mr. Lam Kai Yeung.

The Audit Committee has reviewed the accounting standards
and practices adopted by the Group and discussed with the
management about the internal control and financial reporting
matters for the Year. During the Year, the Audit Committee also
reviewed the effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and
internal audit function. The Group’s quarterly, half-yearly and
annual results for the Year have also been reviewed by the Audit
Committee, which was of the opinion that the preparation of such
results complied with the applicable accounting standards and
that adequate disclosures had been made.

During the Year, six Audit Committee meetings were held and the
details of attendance of each Audit Committee member are set
out in the section headed “Attendance of Directors at Meetings”
on page 39 of this annual report.
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Remuneration Committee

The Company established a Remuneration Committee on 10
September 2013 with written terms of reference in accordance
with the CG Code which are posted on the websites of GEM
and of the Company. The primary duties of the Remuneration
Committee are, among other matters, to review and make
recommendations to the Board on the terms of remuneration
packages of the executive Directors and senior management
of the Company and on the establishment of a formal and
transparent procedure for developing the remuneration policy.

During the Year and as at the date of this annual report, the
Remuneration Committee comprised three independent non-
executive Directors, namely Mr. Lam Kai Yeung, Ms. Lee Kwun
Ling, May Jean and Mr. Zhong Shi, and the Remuneration
Committee was chaired by Mr. Lam Kai Yeung.

During the Year, the Remuneration Committee has reviewed
and made recommendations to the Board on the remuneration
packages of the Directors and senior management of the
Company, and reviewed and approved certain new remuneration
proposals with reference to the Board’s corporate objectives and
the prevailing market conditions, assessed the performance of
the executive Directors and approved the terms of the executive
Directors’ service contracts.

During the Year, six Remuneration Committee meetings were
held and the details of attendance of each Remuneration
Committee member are set out in the section headed
“Attendance of Directors at Meetings” on page 39 of this annual
report.

Details of the remuneration of each of the Directors for the Year
are set out in note 14 to the consolidated financial statements.
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Nomination Committee

The Company established the Nomination Committee on 10
September 2013 with written terms of reference in accordance
with the code provisions set out in the CG Code which are posted
on the websites of GEM and of the Company. The primary duties
of the Nomination Committee are, among other matters, to
formulate the Nomination Policy and make recommendations to
the Board on the nomination and appointment of the Directors
and the succession planning for the Directors.

During the Year and as at the date of this annual report, the
Nomination Committee comprised three independent non-
executive Directors, namely Mr. Lam Kai Yeung, Ms. Lee
Kwun Ling, May Jean and Mr. Zhong Shi, and the Nomination
Committee was chaired by Mr. Lam Kai Yeung.

During the Year, three Nomination Committee meetings were
held and details of attendance of each Nomination Committee
member are set out in the section headed “Attendance of
Directors at Meetings” on page 39 of this annual report.

During the Year, the Nomination Committee has reviewed the
structure, size, diversity and composition of the Board, reviewed
the existing Board Diversity Policy and its implementation,
assessed the independence of the independent non-
executive Directors and reviewed the annual confirmations of
independence received from them. The Nomination Committee
also reviewed the nomination procedures, process and criteria
to select and recommend candidates for directorship and made
recommendations on the nomination and appointment of new
Directors.
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Compliance Committee

The Company established a compliance committee
(“Compliance Committee”) of the Company on 10 September
2013 with written terms of reference which are posted on the
websites of GEM and of the Company.

During the Year and as at the date of this annual report, the
Compliance Committee comprised two executive Directors,
namely Ms. Lam Ching Yee (chairman) and Ms. Lin Ting. The
principal duties of the Compliance Committee include:

®* to establish, execute and maintain the compliance and
corporate governance system of the Group;

e to support and provide instructions to ensure that each
business unit of the Group can establish, execute and
maintain its compliance and corporate governance system;

® to produce the compliance manual of the Group and keep
it updated;

e to conduct education and training programmes on
compliance for the Group, including compliance seminars;

e to monitor the status of the compliance and corporate
governance system of the Group; and

* to investigate compliance problems of the Group and take
appropriate measures when one arises (it may instruct the
relevant department(s) to deal with the problem depending
on its nature).

During the Year, the members of the Compliance Committee
have, from time to time, been monitoring the status of the
compliance and corporate governance system of the Group, and
the Compliance Committee was of the view that there was no
compliance issue of the Group which required the Compliance
Committee to resolve by way of a meeting. Therefore, no meeting
of the Compliance Committee was held during the Year.
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ATTENDANCE OF DIRECTORS AT MEETINGS

EEHESRER

Number of meetings attended/entitled to attend (7ore 7/

e/ ARLEEERY 1 1)

Annual Extraordinary Audit Remuneration Nomination
general general Board Committee Committee Committee
meeting meeting meetings meetings meetings meetings
Directors £ REBEAE RRBRAE ETged ENZEEER HMZEeeE RezEsed
Executive Directors HiTEs
M. Chan Wai Lung REEts 11 NATER 1717 NATER NATER NATER
Ms. Lam Ching Yee WEERL 1A NATER 1647 NATER NATER NATER
Ms. Lin Ting HELL " NATER 1747 NATER NATER NATER
M. Shi Shaowu frote 2) EOREE ML) 1 NATER 1010 NATER NATER NATER
Non-executive Directors FUTES
Mr. Lo Yu Man frote 3) EFEREMH) NATER NATEE 35 NATER NATEE NATER
M. Fung Ka Lok Adams frote 4) BERERE ML) 0 NATER 58 NATER NATER NATER
Mr. Ng Wing Cheong Stephen ot 5 REREE (M) 11 NATER 142 NATER NATER NATER
Independent non-executive Directors ~ BUFH{TEE
M. Lam Kai Yeung WEBRE 1A NATER 1617 6/6 6/6 33
Ms. Lee Kiwun Ling, May Jean 30 0 NATER 1617 6/6 6/6 33
Mr. Zhong Shi FERE o NATER 15/17 6/6 6/6 33
Notes: Bia# -
1. Attendances of the Directors appointed/resigned/retired during the Year were 1. REAEZE B BRENEEHHEBRLDZER
made by reference to the number of such meetings held during their respective HEMNMBITHEREENEGEE -
tenures.
2. Mr. Shi Shaowu was appointed as an executive Director with effect from 16 2. FOREERZZE—N\FRAT"EZETEBNTES -
May 2018.
3. Mr. Lo Yu Man was appointed as a non-executive Director with effect from 9 3. EFELER-ZT-NF+ANAEZEAENTE
October 2018. E
4. Mr. Fung Ka Lok Adams retired as a non-executive Director with effect from 25 4., BREHAEERZZE-N\FRAZ+ABEMEIENTE
June 2018. E
5. Mr. Ng Wing Cheong Stephen resigned as a non-executive Director with effect 5 REHZER-ZT-N\F+ANBHFHIERTES -

from 9 October 2018.
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

Directors’ and auditors’ responsibilities for the
consolidated financial statements

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the
consolidated financial statements of the Group for each financial period
to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group and of
the results and cash flows for that period. In preparing the consolidated
financial statements for the Year, the Board has selected suitable
accounting policies and applied them consistently, made judgments
and estimates that are prudent, fair and reasonable and prepared
the consolidated financial statements on a going concern basis. The
Directors are responsible for taking all reasonable and necessary steps
to safeguard the assets of the Group and to prevent and detect fraud
and other irregularities. The Directors continue to adopt the going
concern approach in preparing the consolidated financial statements
of the Group and are not aware of any material uncertainties relating
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt upon the
Company'’s ability to continue as a going concern.

The reporting responsibilities of the Company’s external auditor, PKF
Hong Kong Limited, are set out in the section headed “Independent
Auditor’s Report” on pages 79 to 84 of this annual report.

Auditors’ Remuneration

During the Year, the remuneration paid or payable to the Group’s
external auditor for the audit and non-audit services provided
amounted to HK$520,000 and approximately HK$58,000 respectively.
The non-audit services comprised fees for the taxation review.

ERELGRE

BEREFZ
EERGRBOERAEMBRRNEM

EERANEARZER B RRRAELEEANGE
MBEHERAERE  DEEEERATHRBRALE
BERZBRNEGRALEERRERE - HEA
FENGAMBREAN EFGCEESENEA
BERLIMAERER - (EHEER - AT A A
Kfbct URSBEREELERUGAMBERR - &
FRERDNYEERBEZLR  UREAEHE
MEE  KpERERBGFREMTIETR - EF
KRR AREGE W RRFRERNFELES
s B AAEE A BRI L EBAR ARG E
REENREXERZEHHIERZEATHRAR
o

RABINEBIZ BN R E R BN (BE) 25 BB
ERARNBERETHNAFRETIBEESLIE B
STAZERRT RS | — & o

BB AT 2 &

RER - RSB FTIRE 2 BN IEE
TR B BN T EHZ B & 9 B /520,000 7T
K #)68,000/8 7T < JFEZRBBIERBEHNNER -

EMSRMEEERERAT | 2018 ERK

40



41

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
EREQIWSE

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Board has not established a corporate governance committee.
According to code provision D.3 of the CG Code, the Board is
responsible for performing the corporate governance duties of
the Company. The Board shall have the following duties and
responsibilities for performing the corporate governance duties of the
Company:

e to develop and review the policies and practices on corporate
governance of the Group and make recommendations;

e to review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of Directors and senior management;

® to review and monitor the Group’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

e to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual (if any) applicable to Directors and
employees; and

e to review the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and
disclosure in the corporate governance report of the Company.

The Board has reviewed the Company’s policies and practices on
corporate governance and compliance with the CG Code, reviewed
and monitored the training and continuous professional development
of Directors and senior management, and the Group’s policies and
practices on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements during
the Year as well as the disclosures in this Corporate Governance
Report.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL

The Board acknowledges its responsibility for the effectiveness of
the Group’s risk management and internal control systems on an
ongoing basis. The main features of the risk management and internal
control systems of the Group include the identification, assessment
and evaluation of risks, the development and continuous updating
of mitigation measures, and the ongoing review of internal control
procedures to ensure their effectiveness. The Group has also
established an organisational structure in such control systems, clearly
defining the power and obligations of each department in the Group, in
order to protect the Group’s assets against improper use and ensure
compliance with rules and regulations. Such risk management and
internal control systems are designed to manage rather than eliminate
the risk of failure to achieve business objectives, and can only provide
reasonable but not absolute assurance against material misstatement
or loss.

The Company has an internal control manual containing policies on
information disclosure which is applicable to all employees of the
Company and regularly reminds Directors and employees to properly
comply with relevant policies on inside information while notifying the
Directors (who are also the senior management of the Group) and
employees the latest guidance announced by the regulatory body on
disclosure of such information from time to time to keep all of them
abreast of the latest information.

Process used to identify, evaluate and manage

significant risks

The Group’s risk management process involves the identification,
evaluation, response, monitoring and reporting of risks. After risks
that may potentially affect the Group’s business and operations are
identified by the management of the Company, the Board will perform
risk assessment by prioritising the identified risks to determine key
risks exposed to the Group and discuss measures to mitigate such key
risks. Besides, existing risk mitigation measures are subject to regular
monitoring by the management of the Company, which will review the
Group’s risk management strategies, and report such results and make
appropriate suggestions to the Board.
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The Board has in place an internal audit function within the Group
as required under code provision C.2.5 of the CG code. The Group
conducts review of the risk management and internal control systems
on annual basis. During the Year, to strengthen the risk management
and internal control of the Group, the Company has engaged an
independent professional adviser (“Internal Control Adviser”) to perform
independent appraisal of the adequacy and effectiveness of certain
subsidiaries’ risk management and internal control system for the
Year. The scope of review for the Year included human resources
and payroll cycle, and control over the property, plant and equipment
cycle of certain operating subsidiaries. The Internal Control Adviser
has reported major findings and areas for improvement to the Audit
Committee. All recommendations from the Internal Control Adviser
would be followed up closely to ensure that they are implemented
within a reasonable period of time. The Board is of the opinion that the
Group’s risk management and internal control systems are effective and
adequate and that nothing has come to its attention to cause the Board
to believe the Group’s risk management and internal control systems are
inadequate. The Board has also considered the adequacy of resources,
staff qualifications and experience, training programmes and budget of
the Company’s accounting and financial reporting function.

The Group believes that good corporate governance practices are very
important for maintaining and promoting investor confidence and for
the sustainable growth of the Group. The Group has therefore made
continued efforts to uplift the quality of its corporate governance.

COMMUNICATIONS WITH SHAREHOLDERS
AND INVESTORS

The Company communicates with the Shareholders, the potential
investors and the investment community (collectively, “Investors”) of
the Company mainly in the following ways:

(@ the holding of annual general meetings and extraordinary general
meetings, if any, which may be convened for specific purposes
and provide opportunities for the Shareholders and Investors to
communicate directly with the Board;

(b) the publication of quarterly, interim and annual reports, circulars,
announcements and notices of Shareholders’ meetings as
required under the GEM Listing Rules and/or press releases of
the Company providing updated information of the Group; and

(c) the provision of the latest information of the Group on the
websites of GEM and of the Company.

Pursuant to article 65 of the articles of association of the Company,
the annual general meetings or extraordinary general meetings of the
Company called for the passing of a special resolution shall be called
by at least 21 days’ notice in writing. The meetings of the Company
other than an annual general meeting or an extraordinary general
meeting for the passing of a special resolution shall be called by at least
14 days’ notice in writing.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Convening an extraordinary general meeting by
Shareholders

Pursuant to article 64 of the articles of association of the Company,
any one or more Shareholders holding, at the date of deposit of
the requisition, not less than one tenth of the paid up capital of
the Company having the right of voting at general meetings of the
Company shall at all times have the right, by requisition in writing to the
Board or the Company Secretary, to require an extraordinary general
meeting to be called by the Board for the transaction of any business
specified in such requisition. Such meeting shall be held within two
months after the deposit of such requisition. If within 21 days of such
deposit, the Board fails to proceed to convene such meeting, the
requisitionist(s) himself/herself/themselves may do so in the same
manner, and all reasonable expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s)
as a result of the failure of the Board shall be reimbursed to the
requisitionist(s) by the Company.

Procedures for sending enquiries and proposals to the
Board

Shareholders may send their enquiries and/or put forward proposals to
the Company, for the attention of the Board or the Company Secretary,
by posting the same to Unit Nos. 1209-10, 12/F., Prosperity Millennia
Plaza, No. 663 King’s Road, North Point, Hong Kong.

For the avoidance of doubt, Shareholders must deposit and send the
original duly signed written requisition, notice or statement, or enquiry
(as the case may be) to the above address and provide their full
name, contact details and identification in order to give effect thereto.
Shareholders’ information may be disclosed as required by law.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms. Wong Kei Lam, the financial controller of the Company, is also the
Company Secretary. She has undertaken not less than 15 hours of
relevant professional training to update her skills and knowledge during
the Year.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

During the Year, there was no significant change to the memorandum
and articles of association of the Company.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS

EFEEHER

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Chan Wai Lung (BR {2 %), aged 38, was appointed as an
executive Director and the chairman of the Board on 8 June 2017.

Mr. Chan has years of experience in business planning and
development. Mr. Chan has been a director of Draco International
Investment (Holdings) Limited (specialising in designing corporate
structures) since July 2013, the chairman of the board of directors
of Elite Pro-Management Limited (specialising in business process
outsourcing) from October 2015 to July 2018, and a director of Draco
Human Resources Management Limited since November 2016. Since
August 2018, Mr. Chan has been a non-executive director of Noble
Engineering Group Holdings Limited (“Noble Engineering”, a company
listed on GEM with Stock Code: 8445).

Mr. Chan was appointed as a business development consultant
(R P EER) by the Management Committee of the Haining Economic
Development Zone, Zhejiang Province, the PRC in April 2017. In
October 2017, he obtained his Honorary Doctorate in Business
Administration from Sabi University.

Ms. Lam Ching Yee (# & {&), aged 37, was appointed as an
executive Director on 23 June 2016.

Ms. Lam obtained her Bachelor of Business Administration (Honours)
in Finance from the City University of Hong Kong in 2006. Ms. Lam is
a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
and has more than ten years of experience in the auditing and
accounting fields. Ms. Lam is currently the company secretary and
financial controller of Hang Tai Yue Group Holdings Limited (“HTY
Group”, formerly known as Interactive Entertainment China Cultural
Technology Investments Limited, a company listed on GEM with Stock
Code: 8081), whose interest in the shares of the Company falls to be
disclosed under the provisions in Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the
SFO.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS

Ms. Lin Ting (#£), aged 49, was appointed as an executive Director
on 23 June 2016.

Ms. Lin graduated from Shanghai University of Engineering Science
(\B/F T2 H T K ) with a Bachelor degree in Industrial Enterprise
Management in 1992. She has also obtained a Master degree in
Technology Management in Information Technology from the Hong
Kong University of Science and Technology in 2004.

Ms. Lin was qualified as a project management professional by the
Project Management Institute in March 2014. Ms. Lin joined the China
Cargo Airlines Co., Ltd. (FEIEEMZEFRR A F]) in August 1998 and
has served as deputy general manager of the business development
department since March 2009. She then joined Eastern Airlines
Logistics Co., Ltd. (R ZEMRAR A R) in November 2012 as the
general manager of the information department. Ms. Lin then served
as general manager in the logistics product department of China
Eastern Airlines Co., Ltd. (FF Bl 75 M 2= & 5 B R A 7)), a joint stock
limited company incorporated in the PRC with limited liability whose H
shares are listed on the Stock Exchange (Stock Code: 670), A shares
are listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange (Stock Code: 600115)
and American depositary shares are listed on the New York Stock
Exchange, Inc., and the holding company of Eastern Airlines Logistics
Co., Ltd., from April 2013 to June 2015. From 7 December 2015 to 22
June 2016, Ms. Lin was an independent non-executive director of HTY
Group.

Mr. Shi Shaowu (¥ 4 &), aged 48, was appointed as an executive
Director on 16 May 2018.

Mr. Shi holds a degree of Doctor of Business Administration from
Business School Netherlands and a degree of Master of Business
Administration from Dongbei University of Finance & Economics in the
PRC.

From June 2005 to December 2012, Mr. Shi served as the president
and the chairman of the board of Schmid Solar Shenzhen Ltd.. He
is currently the legal representative and the general manager of Sunii
Holdings Co., Ltd., a director and the chief executive officer of Z Ji§
TEEBHR AT (for identification purpose only, Hua Xu Business
Management Co., Ltd.), and the legal representative and the chairman
of the board of It R B B2 B 1% E B R A A (for identification purpose
only, Beijing Uloong Educational Investment Co., Ltd.).

In October 2017, Mr. Shi was selected as 2 R & ZEFAIF 81 ¥
E M (for identification purpose only, “National 10,000 Outstanding
Innovative Tutor”) by the Ministry of Education of the PRC. He is
also a director of Hong Kong and Mainland International Investment
Society Limited which specialises in the promotion of investment and
cooperation between the PRC and Hong Kong.
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ESEEFR

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. Lo Yu Man (ZF ), aged 36, was appointed as a non-executive
Director on 9 October 2018.

Mr. Lo obtained his bachelor of music from The University of
Manchester in September 2007. Mr. Lo is the founder of Yowin
Human Resources Company, which has been engaged in the human
resources business since December 2017. He has worked with
Venetian Cotai Hotel Management Limited and its affiliates and related
entities from August 2013 to April 2016 and from November 2016
to October 2017, with his last position as associate in the market
development department.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Lam Kai Yeung (M # %), aged 49, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director on 24 June 2015.

Mr. Lam is a fellow of the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants and a fellow of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Mr. Lam obtained a bachelor degree of Accounting
from Xiamen University in the PRC in July 1990 and a master degree
in Business Administration from Oxford Brookes University in the
United Kingdom in July 2010. Mr. Lam is a licensed person for type
4 (advising on securities) and type 9 (asset management) regulated
activities under SFO.

Mr. Lam was an independent non-executive director of Hua Long Jin
Kong Company Limited (“Hua Long”, formerly known as Highlight
China IoT International Limited, a company listed on the Main Board
of the Stock Exchange with Stock Code: 1682) from August 2014
to May 2017. Mr. Lam has been an executive director and the chief
executive officer of Hua Long since June 2017 and September 2017
respectively. He was an independent non-executive director of Sunway
International Holdings Limited (a company listed on the Main Board
of the Stock Exchange with Stock Code: 58) from May 2015 to June
2015 and from October 2015 to July 2018, and has been redesignated
to an executive director since July 2018. He has been an independent
non-executive director of Starrise Media Holdings Limited (a company
listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange with Stock Code:
1616) since June 2012, an independent non-executive director of Holly
Futures Co., Ltd. (@ company listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange with Stock Code: 3678) since June 2015, an independent
non-executive director of Shi Shi Services Limited (formerly known
as Heng Sheng Holdings Limited and Kong Shum Union Property
Management (Holding) Limited, a company listed on GEM with Stock
Code: 8181) since October 2015, and an independent non-executive
director of Kin Shing Holdings Limited (a company listed on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange with Stock Code: 1630) since May
2017.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS

Ms. Lee Kwun Ling, May Jean (Z%40), aged 58, was appointed
as an independent non-executive Director on 10 September 2013.

Ms. Lee obtained a degree of Master of Business Administration
(Executive) at the City University of Hong Kong in October 2014. Ms.
Lee also obtained her Doctor of Business Administration from the City
University of Hong Kong in November 2018.

From December 2006 to October 2012, Ms. Lee worked for King
Fook Holdings Limited and her last position was director of sales and
brand development, Greater China. From October 2012 to January
2015, Ms. Lee worked for Boucheron Hong Kong Limited as a retail
director. Ms. Lee was a director of Yan Oi Tong, a registered non-profit
charitable organisation, from 2010 to 2014 and from 2017 to 2018.

Ms. Lee has been an independent non-executive director of China
Brilliant Global Limited (formerly known as Prosten Health Holdings
Limited, a company listed on GEM with Stock Code: 8026) since
February 2018.

Mr. Zhong Shi (#%), aged 35, was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director on 8 June 2017.

Mr. Zhong holds a Bachelor degree of Engineering in Electronic
and Information Engineering professions and a Bachelor degree of
Management in Business and Administration profession respectively
granted by the University of Electronic Science and Technology of
China (£ FEHZAKE), the PRC in 2005, and a Postgraduate Diploma
in Integrated and Practicing Management from The University of Hong
Kong in 2015. Mr. Zhong was qualified as a Financial Risk Manager
by the Global Association of Risk Professionals in April 2010 and has
completed the board secretary (¥ 5 & # &) qualification training
organised by the Shanghai Stock Exchange of the PRC in September
2015.

Mr. Zhong was an investment manager of Shanghai Acorn Campus
Venture Capital Co., Ltd. (& FEBIZHREERE (L8) BR A 7A])
from August 2009 to October 2011 and was an investment supervisor
of Shanghai Leaguer Tsing-Yuan Venture Capital Management
Partnership (Limited Partnership) (/8 /1 &5 RAI ¥R EE 8
Bk % (AR AIK)) from 2012 to 2013. He was the general
manager of Shanghai Kanghao Investment Management Consultancy
Limited (L8R 21 EE B A A AR A F)) from January 2015 to
December 2016. Mr. Zhong was the manager of Pingan Bright Fortune
Investment Management Co., Ltd. from 2017 to April 2018. Mr. Zhong
has been the Investment Executive Director of the Fosun Innovation
Center-Innovation Investment at Shanghai Fosun High Technology
(Group) Co., Ltd. since May 2018. Mr. Zhong has years of experience
in private equity and venture capital investment and has accumulated
extensive social network in these areas.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

BRE HERELIRSE

ABOUT THIS REPORT

This Environmental, Social and Governance (“ESG”) report (“ESG
Report”) is the third ESG Report published by the Company. By
reporting the policies, measures and performances of the Group in
ESG aspects, it allows the stakeholders of the Group to understand the
progress and development directions of the Group.

REPORTING STANDARD

This ESG Report is prepared in accordance with the Environmental,
Social and Governance Reporting Guide as contained in Appendix
20 to the GEM Listing Rules. The Group adheres to the principles
of materiality, quantitative, balance and consistency to report on the
environmental and social policies, as well as the key performance
indicators (“KPIs”).

The corporate governance report of the Group is prepared in
accordance with all applicable code provisions set out in the Corporate
Governance Code under Appendix 15 to the GEM Listing Rules in
force during the year ended 31 December 2018, and is set out in the
section headed “Corporate Governance Report” in this annual report.

SCOPE OF THE ESG REPORT

Unless otherwise specified, the Year is defined as the period from 1
January 2018 to 31 December 2018. The scope of this ESG Report
covers most of the Group’s segments, including the provision of
financial trading software solutions, provision of other IT and internet
financial platforms services, money lending business and assets
investments.

FEEDBACK

The Group values your feedback and comments about this ESG
Report and on how the Group can continue to improve its sustainability
performance. Should you have any comments or suggestions, please
feel free to contact the Group at:

Unit Nos. 1209-10, 12/F.
Prosperity Millennia Plaza
No. 663 King’s Road
North Point, Hong Kong
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

THE GROUP’S APPROACH TO
SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT

The Group believes that it is essential to formulate effective strategies
to take a balance of economic, environmental and social benefits and
other business targets. The Group has integrated ESG considerations
into its operations, with a particular focus on fostering interactions with
its stakeholders, listening to the opinions of its clients, caring for its
employees, and contributing more to the society.

The Group endeavors to be an environmentally-friendly corporation
and fulfil its responsibilities to the environment and community, whilst
promoting sustainable business growth.

STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT

The Group constantly communicates with its key internal and
external stakeholders through various channels. Stakeholder
participation allows the Group to ensure the alignment of its business
and sustainability strategy with stakeholders’ perspectives and
expectations.

The Group has identified the following key stakeholders that are
important to its business and established various channels for
communication with them:

Stakeholders Needs and expectations
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Communication channels

BHE ERRBE BERE
Customers o Service quality o Meetings
. Technological innovation ° Emails and service hotline
. Information security
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Employees ° Rights and interests of employees ° Training, seminars and briefing sessions
° Career development ° Internal meetings
° Remuneration and welfare ° Staff activities
o Performance review
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Suppliers o Corporate reputation o Meetings
° Customer satisfaction ° Emails
° Communication and cooperation
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
BE -UERELHE

Stakeholders
&

Needs and expectations

ERRBE

Communication channels
BBERE

Shareholders and investors

BREEEE

Government and regulatory
bodies

BT R B B

Community

o

o Information disclosure

o Corporate governance

° Financial performance

o Protection of investors’ interests
e [ERWE

e EETAR

e  HIBRE

e REREEER

° Relevant laws and regulations
° Economic development

o HRBDERER
o EEEE

° Environmental responsibilities

° Public welfare

° Community development support
e RIBEIME

o RHIEF

s XFHHEEERE
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° Annual general meeting and other
general meetings
° Announcements and publications

s REREFAGLEMERAS
o RERTY

° Ad-hoc enquiries
° Seminars

° Emails
. TEBHEHN
o  TFE

° Community services and activities
° Mailbox

° Company website
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

In preparing this ESG Report, a survey has been conducted to help
the Group to identify and prioritise the issues that are material to both
internal and external stakeholders of the Group. Based on the survey
results, eleven material ESG topics were identified and highlighted in
the following table:
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Significance to Business
Number Issues Foh ]
1 Greenhouse gas emission 1 BERETER
2 Non-hazardous waste generation 2 MEFEVEE
3 Waste recycling 3 & 4 [21 42
4 Energy use and energy efficiency 4 BEIR 5 A e e AR
5 Wastewater discharge 5 JEE 7K HE B
6 Natural resources 6 RAER
7 Labour rights 7 EIEz
8 Diversity and equal opportunity 8 BTIEREEHE
9 Employer-employee relations 9 EF—ESEEF
10 Employee benefits 10 ESEF
11 Training and developments 11 IR %R
12 Occupational health and safety 12 B¥RBERETE
13 Supply chain management 13 e g m
14 Product quality and safety 14 EREEREZE
15 Customer satisfaction 15 EFREE
16 Complaints handling 16 RFEE
17 Intellectual property rights 17 M ERE
18 Consumer data protection and privacy 18 EHEEZEHRERER
19 Community investment 19 MREE

For future sustainability reporting, the Group will re-evaluate and review
its material ESG topics to ensure their relevance to its stakeholders and
to ensure compliance with the GEM Listing Rules.

RARUFEERBEN S - AEEBEHTHER
EMASEEZNRE LR RERHEE  AER
SRS B ) E R FERET GEM ETARR -
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BIR HERELIERS

EMPLOYMENT AND LABOUR PRACTICES

The Group highly values its employees as its assets and the
cornerstone of its sustainable development. The Group believes that
every employee should be respected. During the Year, the Group
was not aware of any material non-compliance with the Employment
Ordinance (Cap. 57 of the Laws of Hong Kong), the Minimum Wage
Ordinance (Cap. 608 of the Laws of Hong Kong) and the Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance (Cap. 485 of the Laws of Hong
Kong) and other applicable local laws for employment.

As at 31 December 2018, the Group had 62 employees (2017: 61),
including 43 (2017: 46) male staff members and 19 (2017: 15) female
staff members.

1 18 &2 25 T1E f

AEEGEERRER REARKENEERAH
BRRNED -AEERAEBUEEHEXIE
E o PNFER RNEEYE AR AR EERERK
I (EEEDIFESTE) (RETEGD) (FHRED
£ 608%) MRHIMEAEEF & (BBENIF485%)
VAR H At 368 R 1 3 75 (R (DA B -

R-ZE—NFE+_A=+—8,K£EHF2HEE
ZE—tF:61%)  BIE4ASHR(ZZ—CF 46
Z)BHBTIRI19ZB(ZE—F:1565%) XMHET -

2018 2017
Workforce by age group EFREBEIHDHE —E-N\F —FT—tF
20-29 20-297%% 55% 53%
30-39 30-397%% 31% 31%
40-49 40-49 7% 11% 13%
50 or above 50 5% M A & 3% 3%
Recruitment and Benefits HREXEF
The Group takes a fair and open principle on its recruitment policy. The AREBEHHBEBKERAFAFMRELR - NEEH
Group looks for people who are trustworthy, innovative and proactive SWRESEE =68IFE z$ AR B BB K

team players. The Group is committed to hiring employees without
taking into consideration of nationality, gender, age, family status
and other facts irrelevant to competencies and qualifications of the
candidates during the recruitment process. Applicants will undergo a
formal and objective assessment to determine whether they have the
aptitude and ability to meet the requirements of the Group’s business
development. An employment contract must be signed between a
newly recruited employee and the Group before commencement of
service. All rights and benefits, including working hours and leave
entitlement, are stated within the employment contract.

The remuneration package of the Group’s employees is maintained at
a competitive level and is strictly in compliance with the Minimum Wage
Ordinance (Cap. 608 of the Laws of Hong Kong). The remuneration
package is determined on the basis of the employees’ or the
directors’ performance, experience and the market benchmark. The
Group paid the monthly salary and made MPF contributions within
the prescribed timeframe for the Year. Apart from basic salary, the
Group also provides discretionary bonus, medical insurance and long
service award to its employees. Under the share option scheme of the
Company, share options may be granted to qualified employees.

In addition, the Group provides staff with good promotion prospects.
The Group has established an annual performance appraisal system
to review staff performance and remuneration regularly, with an aim to
reward and motivate the contribution and performance of employees
and assist them in their career development and promotion within the
Group.
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Dismissal

Whenever there are any dismissal or resignation cases, designated
human resources staff will perform an exit-interview to understand
the primary reasons of departure or dismissal so as to ensure full
compliance with the relevant employment laws and regulations, reduce
staff turnover and improve the business operation in the future.

Equal Opportunities

The Group is committed to providing a working environment that is free
from discrimination on the basis of gender, age, family status, ethnicity,
religion, nationality, or disability. The Group treats all job applicants and
employees equally and fairly throughout hiring, transfer, recruitment,
training and promotion.

Work-life Balance

Five-day work week arrangement is adopted by the Group to facilitate
work-life balance. In addition to all statutory holidays as specified in
local laws and regulations, employees are entitled to different kinds
of leave, such as annual leave, maternity leave, paternity leave, and
compassionate leave. Besides, the Group organises a variety of
recreational activities to improve the sense of belongings of its staff and
promote corporate culture, including sports games, wine tasting and
squid fishing activities. Such activities also help in creating a cheerful,
energetic and harmonious working environment. To enhance the
interaction and communication between the staff of the Group, lunch
gatherings were arranged by the human resources department during
the Year.

Training and Development

The Group is committed to providing an environment that is conducive
to the development of its staff. To achieve this, the Group organises
a wide range of internal and external training programmes to enrich
business expertise, competencies and skill sets of staff to meet
the everchanging challenges of the marketplace. During the Year,
the training topics included updates on information technologies,
operation management, technical updates and market trends, GEM
Listing Rules, accounting standards and laws and compliance.
The Group also supports and encourages self-initiated personal
development through financial sponsorship.

BIR HERELIERE
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2018 (hour) 2017 (hour)

—E-N\F —ET—tF

Average training hours completed B 58 FX 19 S 19 3% 51 B ("NEF) (/NEF)

Per employee BHREER 2.29 1.95
By gender ZERIE 5

Male B 0.84 1.65

Female pegi 6.09 2.84
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BIR HERELIERS

Health and Safety

The Group is committed to providing a safe workplace to its employees
and their health is always the Group’s prime concern. To ensure the
safety of its employees, safety precaution within the workplace and
compliance with all applicable regulations on health and safety will
be considered and reviewed regularly. During the Year, the Group
was not aware of any material non-compliance with the Occupational
Safety and Health Ordinance (Cap. 509 of the Laws of Hong Kong)
and relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact on the
Group relating to providing a safe working environment and protecting
employees from occupational hazards.

To safeguard employees’ health and safety, the Group has adopted
the following measures:

° Provide and maintain a working environment which is safe and
poses no threat to health;

° Provide sufficient first-aid kits at the workplace;

° Prohibit smoking in all enclosed areas within its offices without
exception;

° Perform regular checking and maintenance of machines,
equipment and fire extinguishers;

° Attend the fire drill annually organised by respective building
management companies; and

° Carry out inspection for any unsafe condition at the workplace
and fix it immediately.

During the Year, the number of lost days due to work injury was 1 day
(2017: Nil) and there were no work-related fatalities (2017: Nil).

Labour Standard

Child and forced labour are strictly prohibited within the Group.
The suppliers of the Group are expected to follow similar standards
of labour practices when collaborating with the Group. Prior to
confirmation of employment, the Group’s human resources staff
require the job applicants to provide valid identity documents to ensure
that applicants are lawfully employable. Upon discovery of any use of
child labour and forced labour, the relevant employee will be dismissed
immediately. During the Year, the Group was not aware of any material
non-compliance with the laws and regulations relating to preventing
child and forced labour.

Finsoft Financial Investment Holdings Limited | Annual Report 2018

BEREZE
AEERNRREERHLEN TSR EBEMNR
FIGRRAEENTIZWIRE - RREREENE
2 ARBBEREELREETESMANLEE
PifE A R BT EANRE R L 2ER - NF
N AEELTTABEAEERERBELERE
BGROD (BB EDFE00%) REAEERHEZ 2
THEREARERERXBERLTAEATZENN
B SOERRIBEMR -

RREEENREELZ 2 AEECRIRUATHE
I -

e RAYABLZE2AEEFEEEN TIFRE:

o HETFZMEE RSN

o Z2HZELERIEAMEHEHARELRE

o EHBBILRBMER  REPIANE

e  EFZIEMAEEBRRTRPEENIEE
P54

o BWEITESMEMRZEMBELIBNAIE -

RER  FAITEMBRHTEREA1X(
FodE) > AWEB A TER B (
FE) o

T+
2+

4 T2 A
AEMBAEAETRANST - REENHER
fEEAREAIER RN ERMNS TRE - £
REBARN  AEENANERETEERHH
AREEBHHBAXM - ARRPFABEET
B-REAEMETRRHS TR EHETHES
TEVEARE - RER - AEEI TABEAREE
R B T R 3 144 T A DI RGOSR -



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

OPERATING PRACTICES

Supply Chain Management

The Group attachs great importance to supplier selection,
management and monitoring. The Group expects its suppliers to
protect the environment, cherish resources, comply with all laws and
regulations and treat employees fairly as the Group does.

The Group adheres to the principles of openness, fairness and
transparency for supplier selection. The Group’s suppliers mainly
comprise (i) hardware vendors who supply hardware, which are
mainly servers, for the Group’s sale of hardware; and (ii) data centre
operators and network system providers who lease out rack space in
data centres and network systems respectively for the Group’s hosting
services.

When selecting suppliers, the Group evaluates its suppliers by
considering factors such as their quality, cost, scale of business and
reputation. The Group also prefers vendors who have green practice
in their business operation and manufacturing process. The Group
undertakes regular reviews to ensure that its partners do not cause
significant negative impact on the environment and society. If any
significant negative environmental or social impact is found to be
caused by its selected suppliers, the Group may consider terminating
the cooperation with them.

Personal Data Protection

The Group is committed to protecting the privacy of personal data of
its employees, customers and business partners. The Group realises
that the financial business involves the dealing with a large amount of
personal information or sensitive corporate data of clients and business
partners. Protecting their interest and privacy is one of the Group’s
top concerns to present outstanding customer service and maintain
long-term business relationships. No department and staff should be
permitted to access, copy and reproduce the content of customer
information without authorisation. Furthermore, the Group has installed
firewall and anti-virus software so as to protect the confidential
information from improper use of hackers. In addition, the employees
of the Group are instructed to handle clients’ and business partners’
information with due care. The Group collects and uses confidential
information in a responsible and non-discriminatory manner by
restricting the use of information to purposes consistent with those
identified in its contracts with such customers and business partners.

During the Year, the Group was not aware of any material non-
compliance with the Personal Data (Privacy) Ordinance (Cap. 486
of the Laws of Hong Kong) and other applicable local laws for data
privacy.
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Service Quality Control

The Group provides flexible, scalable and cost-effective online front-
end trading and back-office systems for trading global financial
products, for instance, equities, derivatives, forex, etc. to major banks
and brokerage firms in Hong Kong. As a leading financial software
developer and service provider, the Group believes that product quality
is critical to its reputation and further development. Currently, the
quality control works are handled by the Group’s development team
and quality assurance team.

In order to meet the customers’ requirements, the Group has
established a quality assurance team to develop a sustainable
performance-oriented culture with an emphasis on pursuing
continuous improvement rather than adopting a short-term and
project based approach. To ensure that the Group’s systems meet
its customers’ requirements without deficiency, the quality assurance
team is responsible for running various tests on the Securities Back
Office System and Futures Back Office System in accordance with a
standard checklist.

For the Securities Front Office System and Futures Front Office
System, the Group assists the customers in the market rehearsal
arranged by the Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited to
conduct testing on server and system connectivity. For modification/
customisation of the Securities Front Office System and Futures Front
Office System, testing works are handled by the Group’s development
team. Firstly, the Group conducts tests on an individual basis. Then the
Group may conduct an integration test of software systems in case the
modification/customisation works affect parts of the software systems.
For the Forex and Bullion Front and Back Office Systems which do
not connect to any exchange, products will be tested internally prior to
delivery to the Group’s customers.

If there is any defect in any of the above-mentioned tests, the product
will be returned to the development team for rectification. After the
products are installed, a user acceptance test would be conducted
on the Group’s products. Upon completion of the user acceptance
test, the customers would then sign the user acceptance test form to
acknowledge their acceptance that the software system meets their
functional specifications and performance requirements.

After the installation, the Group keeps communicating with its clients
and reviewing on various communication channels in order to receive
feedback from its customers and handle their complaints (if any) in
time. If bugs are noted, the Group’s customers service department
would record the complaints, liaise with the product development team
and ensure the bugs would be fixed accordingly.

Due to the Group’s business nature, the policies on health and safety,
advertising and labelling relating to products and services are not
considered material to the Group and would not be disclosed in this
ESG Report.

During the Year, the Group was not in violation of any relevant laws
and regulations that have a significant impact on the Group, in relation
to health and safety, advertising and labelling in relation to the services
and products provided by the Group.
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Intellectual Property Rights

The Group is devoted to protecting its own intellectual property rights,
whilst respecting the intellectual property rights of others as well.

The Group has implemented the following key policies and procedures
to ensure the efforts of its software programmers and the assets of the
Group are properly protected so as to create an environment that its
creativity and hard work can be rewarded:

o Only the software files encoded in computer-readable form for
the sole purpose of installation will be provided to the customers
of the Group. Human-readable source codes for the software
written and developed by the Group will not be provided to the
customers of the Group;

o Most of the customers who purchase the Group’s software are
required to execute a standard sales contract with the Group,
which includes a clause stating that all elements and components
in the software system together with the relevant documentation
shall remain the property of the Group, and all intellectual
property rights and other proprietary rights embodied thereof
shall vest in the Group;

o All employees of the Group are required to execute a standard
employment contract acknowledging the Group’s policies
concerning business conduct, confidentiality and restrictions
in the execution of their duties. Such policies include the
requirements that the intellectual property rights in all works,
materials or designs originated, written or made by any employee
of the Group during the course of his or her employment with the
Group shall vest in and remain the sole and exclusive property of
the Group;

. The employees of the Group shall not use, divulge or
communicate to any person any of the trade secrets or other
confidential information relating to the business and operation
of the Group or its customers of which they may have come to
possess during their employment with the Group; and

o In order to ensure that only employees who are responsible for
the development of the Group’s software may have access to the
source codes, the source codes are protected by a source code
management tool with permission setting controls for each user
such that access to the source codes by the staff of the Group is
limited.

Under the Copyright Ordinance (Cap. 528 of the Laws of Hong Kong),
copyright is the right given to the owner of an original work. The owner
has the rights to reproduce or issue copies of the work to the public. It
is an infringement for a third party to do those acts without the consent
of or a licence from the copyright owner. If an infringement is found, the
copyright owner can bring an action seeking damages or an injunction
to restrain the unauthorised copying. During the Year, the Group
was not aware of any material non-compliance with the Copyright
Ordinance (Cap. 528 of the Laws of Hong Kong), the Trade Marks
Ordinance (Cap. 559 of the Laws of Hong Kong) and other applicable
local laws for intellectual property rights.

BIR HERELIERE

B ERE
AEERNNREEFWANBER  RFEEMA
B R -

REBDEIT NIIBRBER MEF - AEREEM
EARBENZ IRREAEENEERIZER
& AlE—ESTHAB RS NREIRHROERE

o ERAKEEFPREHNERAEYARBH
FHXHELRRRAE - T REAEERREE R
BB R A SRR B AT RACHS

o  RENPAAKEBEISMNEFAENEER
VIRRHEERLN - BEP A GRIET AT R
MPFATTER A REREARNEEME -
MABEEMMAENBEREIEMEERTIRE
RALH :

e AEEZREBAFRUSERBAL  ARBX
SEFMERRT REMETHERAERAR
REBIBER - ZEBERPRE - REBAKE
BEEREASEITARRBE VHRERE -
B BERNR M - MR RET R BN AR
U NRAREEERBENRE

o AEEERETSER Mt ARBEIZIREM
REAXEETHERRBS OHREMESER
SEXGRREREFFARNBERT X
HtpRZmEHR &

o AEMREFEEMEAEEEGAREE AT
JRAE I RABLURRIBEE T ARE - &
HEZHFERERELES  KmRAIAEEE
THSRRBR®RE .

RIBCHRAB D) (FBEDIF628F) @ RERE T
[REIVEG AR NROMER] - A A B R R REMIE
MR B o (RIS =7 RISIREH B AR BT A
T LRITRABKEE - BRRRETH - RE
A AR AT KB ERE LA H < B LERE
RENERTR - RFER - AEEIL A MEAEA B
EERGREGD) (BRENFE28F)  (BIRE
1) (BB A G 669 %) M B AbE A MY E A8 E
REOLREMBR -

EMSRBREERERAT | 2018551

58



59

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

BIR HERELIERS

Anti-Corruption

The Group believes that fairness, honesty and integrity are important
business assets of the Group. All employees at all levels must ensure
that the Group’s corporate reputation would never be compromised by
fraud, deceit or corruption.

The Group has in place a zero-tolerance policy for misconduct, a well-
defined anti-bribery policy, a whistle-blowing policy and channels
for redress. The Group also requests its employees to conform with
its requirements and policies on anti-corruption, bribery, extortion,
fraud and money laundering set out in the staff handbook and code
of conduct. The Group keeps the identities of whistleblowers and
their reporting contents confidential and protects the legitimate rights
and interests of whistleblowers, thereby encouraging employees
to report violation and creating a good business environment. Any
proven misconduct case would lead to disciplinary action, dismissal
or be reported to the Independent Commission Against Corruption or
relevant agencies.

During the Year, the Group was not aware of any material non-
compliance with the laws and regulations pertaining to the prevention
of bribery, extortion, fraud and money laundering including the
Prevention of Bribery Ordinance (Cap. 201 of the Laws of Hong Kong).

ENVIRONMENT

The Group strives to protect the environment through implementing
various emission control and energy conservation measures in
its business activities and workplace. The Group is committed to
promoting sustainable future by introducing environmentally friendly
business practices, educating its employees to raise their awareness
on environmental protection and complying with the relevant
environmental laws and regulations.

As the Group is principally engaged in the service industry where
its nature does not involve any direct production of exhaust gases
(including nitrogen oxides (“NOx”) and gaseous sulfur oxides (“SOx”)),
discharge of wastewater and discharge into land and generation of
hazardous waste, there is no direct emission of such pollutants made
by the Group. In addition, since the operations of the Group do not
involve any gaseous fuel consumption and the Group does not own
any vehicles, no significant air pollutants and direct greenhouse gases
(“GHG”) are emitted.
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Air and Greenhouse Gas Emissions

Climate change is a serious issue nowadays and it gradually affects
our daily life. GHG is considered as one of the major contributors
to climate change and global warming. The main source of energy
consumption of the Group came from the electricity usage in daily
operational activities including lighting, office equipment and other
miscellaneous items. The Group mitigates the GHG emission by
implementing different measures as detailed in the section headed
“Use of Resources” of this ESG Report.

Through implementing different measures, the Group has reduced
its GHG emissions and energy consumption during the Year and the
results achieved were disclosed as follows:
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GHG emissions 2018 2017 Unit

BEREHEK —E-N\F —ET—+F By

Scope 2 - Indirect emission 53.57 58.55 Tonnes of CO,e
EE2—RBEHEN 53.57 58.55 VAME — (b iRE 251
Scope 3 - Business travel 0.33 4.03 Tonnes of CO,e
EE3-Zik 0.33 4,03 VARE — &ALt E B 5
Total emissions 53.90 62.58 Tonnes of CO,e

BEERE 53.90 62.58 LAME — S bIRE &5
Total emissions intensity 0.87 1.08 Tonnes of CO,e/employee
BEEREE 0.87 1.03 —a B S B B
Energy consumption 2018 2017 Unit

BEIROH 3E —E-N\F —ET—+F B

Total energy consumption 103,688.00 105,224.00 kWh

AEfE 103,688.00 105,224.00 T REF

- Electricity 103,688.00 105,224.00 kWh

-HAE 103,688.00 105,224.00 TR EF

Energy consumption intensity 1,672.39 1,724.98 kWh/employee

REZRE 1,672.39 1,72498  TEEREE

The Group has signed the Carbon Reduction Charter issued by
the Environment Bureau of the government of Hong Kong Special
Administrative Region to support the minimisation of GHG emissions.
Under the charter, the Group undertakes to carry out various activities
with an aim to improve energy efficiency, conserve energy and raise
public awareness.

During the Year, the Group was not aware of any non-compliance with
the relevant laws and regulations relating to air and GHG emissions
which have a significant impact on the Group.

AEERZEFEFNTHRERARERELOCR
BAOE) AR B ERBYR - REBEHE
AEBAGRRZIALY  EERSRREE 5
HEERREEARER

RER  AEELTAFEMEREBERLEE
REFRAHAEEEEATENERERIOEMS -
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BIR HERELIERS

Wastes

Due to the nature of its business, the Group has not made significant
impact on the environment and natural resources and no hazardous
waste was generated in connection with its businesses during the
Year. For non-hazardous wastes, they were mainly contributed by the
paper wastes and electronic waste generated by the Group. Paper
wastes were collected for recycling through the 3-coloured waste
separation bins placed in the Group’s office. Since the Group mainly
provided services in its business, no significant packaging materials
were used by the Group during the Year.

=327

HRAEENERLEE  EHRERERERLE
BARE EEBNFRNLRAEELEEERREY - &
EEEVIZRAANEBELNERLETEY
REBPRPAENE = EREY 5 8RB BUR AU S
W O EEA - AR A KB AR D XBERBIEE -
BRFERALBEAEFERBBEME -

Non-hazardous waste 2018 2017 Unit
BEEEY —E-N\F T+ By
Total non-hazardous waste produced 0.51 0.41 Tonnes
EEAETBREYES 0.51 0.41 U

Paper 0.42 0.41 Tonnes

R 0.42 0.41 WA

Electronic waste 0.09 N/A Tonnes

BEFEY 0.09 N iE A U
Non-hazardous waste intensity 0.01 0.01 Tonnes/employee
BEEZEYERE 0.01 0.01 e, 1§ 8

During the Year, the Group was not aware of any material non-
compliance with the Waste Disposal Ordinance (Cap. 354 of the
Laws of Hong Kong) and other applicable local laws in relation to the
discharges into water and land, and generation of hazardous and non-
hazardous waste.

Water use management

The water consumption of the Group was mainly generated from daily
water utilisation in office. The Group has no issue in sourcing water that
is fit for purpose. During the Year, the Group operated in leased office
premises in Hong Kong where the water supply and discharge were
solely controlled and centrally managed by the respective property
management. In this case, it is not feasible for the Group to provide
water consumption data and measure the results achieved in reducing
water consumption as there is no sub-meter for individual office unit to
record water usage.

Although the Group’s businesses activities do not consume large
volume of water, the Group still endeavours to promote water
conservation in the office. To avoid unnecessary water consumption
from daily operation, the Group promotes good staff behavior by
encouraging employees to always turn taps off tightly and to use
efficient water-saving products in priority.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

Use of resources

Policies on efficient use of resources

The Group embraces the 4R (reduce, reuse, recycle and replace)
policy in its operations. The Group’s key environmental protection
measures are as follow:

° Comply with all relevant and applicable environmental protection
laws, regulations, standards and guidelines in places where the
Group operates;

° Implement an effective management system to prevent pollution
and reduce the impact on the environment;

° Optimise operating processes by efficiently consuming energy
and water;

° Use resources effectively to reduce unnecessary waste
generation and encourage the habit of reuse and recycle where
applicable; and

° Raise employees’ awareness regarding environmental protection
by educating them about the 4R Environmental Management
Model.

Green practices
To better manage and reduce the Group’s energy usage, the Group
has adopted the following measures:

o Set the air conditioners in its offices at energy-saving
temperature, most preferably at 24°C-26°C;

o Arrange the filter screens of air conditioners to be cleaned
regularly so as to enhance cooling efficiency;

° Give priority in purchasing electrical appliances with energy-
efficient labels;

° Encourage its staff to switch off lightings and electrical devices
which are not in use;

° Switch the photocopying machines, printers and computers to
sleep mode when they are idle;

° Use teleconference and other means of electronic
communication instead of overseas business trips to reduce the
carbon footprint from flights; and

o Use energy saving light bulbs, LED lightings and other energy
saving electrical appliances in its offices.

BIR HERELIERE

EiRFEH

12 BB IR B F

KEBELKEF FIT4R (BIReduce i D A
Reuse M2 £ A + Recycle 1@ 1% H F & Replace &
FABER - AEEMNEERREBNT ¢

o ESTAEEZEMAMEFTA MERMMERR
HAG R0 BERIES]

o EBMNERSE PSR EBAEIRE

B/ 48 -
VR

° BIBRERENRE R EKREBLEERE

o ARFIBERNRLELTUENERY 1
SMETTER THREBRERARNE
R

. EBEIIRBREREBHRN RERSY
B RGO B Y -

BREBE
REIFHEIR SR DEEIRER - ARBDREUAT
DK

o BRAENTZFRERELAE - &IFH24C
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7
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BIR HERELIERS

Policies on waste reduction

° Promote the use of electronic communication for publishing
announcement, event reporting, recommendation, solicitation
and feedback;

° Widely adopt the use of elemental chlorine-free paper;
° Use double-sided printing/copying whenever possible;

° Promote a “think before you copy” attitude: sharing some
documents with co-workers, printing only the number of copies
required;

° Set up 3-coloured waste separation bins to collect recyclable
materials including waste papers, metals, plastics;

° Arrange authorised recycling company to collect toner cartridges
for recycling; and

° Reuse office supplies including envelopes, document clips and
paper bags.

With the implementation of the above measures, the Group believes
that the objectives of saving energy, reducing wastes and promoting
a green office can be achieved. The Group will continue to look for
opportunities to reduce further emissions and wastes so as to minimise
the impacts on the environment and natural resources caused by the
Group’s operation.

Community Investment

The Group strives to be a responsible corporate citizen and dedicates
its resources to those who are in need within our community. During
the Year, the Group made a charitable donation of HK$294,000 (2017:
approximately HK$83,000). The Group focused on providing aids to
underprivileged groups and therefore one of the donations during the
Year was made to the Ex-offenders Photo Exhibition (“ & 4 A T [8 XX
& ”) held by the Society for Community Organization (& &t [& 48 4%
& ). The exhibition intends to seek the public’s understanding and
acceptance of those who made mistakes, thereby supporting the re-
integration of ex-offenders into society. The Group’s staff has also
joined the Charity Walk and Run 2018 to show the Group’s care and
concern to the community.

The Group has once again been awarded the “Caring Company”
from the Hong Kong Council of Social Service in recognition of its
contributions to building a cohesive society, and inspiring corporate
social responsibility by caring for the community and its employees.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

The Board herewith presents the annual report together with the
audited consolidated financial statements of the Group for the Year.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND BUSINESS
REVIEW

The Group is principally engaged in the provision of financial trading
software solutions, provision of other IT and internet financial platforms
services, provision of referral services, money lending business
and assets investments in Hong Kong. During the Year, one of the
subsidiaries of the Company held the license in respect of type 6
(advising on corporate finance) regulated activity under the SFO.
Details of the principal activities and other particulars of the Company’s
principal subsidiaries are set out in note 41 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Further discussion and analysis of these activities, including a
description of the principal risks and uncertainties faced by the Group
and an indication of the likely future developments in the Group’s
business, can be found in the Management Discussion and Analysis
set out on pages 6 to 28 of this annual report. Such discussion forms
part of this directors’ report.

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING AND CLOSURE
OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company (“AGM”)
will be held on Tuesday, 25 June 2019. In order to determine the
entitlement of the Shareholders to attend and vote at the AGM, the
register of members of the Company will be closed from Thursday,
20 June 2019 to Tuesday, 25 June 2019 (both days inclusive), during
which period no transfer of shares of the Company can be registered.
To qualify for the attendance at the AGM, Shareholders must ensure
that all transfer documents accompanied by the relevant share
certificates are lodged with the Company’s branch share registrar
and transfer office in Hong Kong, Union Registrars Limited at Suites
3301-04, 33/F., Two Chinachem Exchange Square, 338 King’s Road,
North Point, Hong Kong no later than 4:00 p.m. on Wednesday, 19
June 2019.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The results of the Group for the Year are set out in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income on pages
85 to 86 of this annual report.

The Board does not recommend the payment of a final dividend for the
Year (2017: Nil).
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EFEEHE

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in the share capital of the Company
during the Year are set out in note 32 to the consolidated financial
statements.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Details of the equity-linked agreements entered into during the Year or
subsisting at the end of the Year are set out below:

Share Option Scheme

The Company adopted a share option scheme (“Scheme”) on
10 September 2013 so as to attract and retain the best available
personnel and to provide additional incentive to the eligible participants
under the Scheme. Pursuant to the Scheme, the Board is authorised,
at its absolute discretion and subject to the terms of the Scheme, to
grant options to subscribe for the ordinary shares of the Company
(in such form then existing and subject to adjustment) to any
employees (full-time or part-time), directors, consultants or advisors
of the Group, or any substantial shareholders of the Group, or any
distributors, contractors, suppliers, agents, customers, business
partners or service providers of the Group. The Scheme shall be valid
and effective for a period of ten years commencing on 10 September
2013 and expiring on the business day immediately preceding the
10th anniversary thereof, i.e. 8 September 2023, subject to early
termination provisions contained in the Scheme.

An offer for the grant of options must be accepted within seven days
inclusive of the day on which such offer is made. The amount payable
by the grantee of an option to the Company on acceptance of the offer
for the grant of an option is HK$1.00. The subscription price of a share
of the Company in respect of any particular option granted under the
Scheme shall be a price solely determined by the Board and notified to
a participant and shall be at least the highest of: (i) the closing price of
the ordinary shares of the Company as stated in the Stock Exchange’s
daily quotations sheet on the date of grant of the option; (i) the average
of the closing prices of the ordinary shares of the Company as stated
in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheets for the 5 business
days immediately preceding the date of grant of the option; and (jii) the
nominal value of an ordinary share of the Company on the date of grant
of the option.
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The total number of ordinary shares of the Company which may be
issued upon exercise of all options to be granted under the Scheme
and any other share option schemes of the Company must not exceed
10% of the ordinary shares of the Company in issue on the listing date
of the Company, being 26 September 2013. The Company may at
any time refresh such limit, subject to the Shareholders’ approval and
issue of a circular in compliance with the GEM Listing Rules, provided
that the total number of ordinary shares of the Company which may be
issued upon exercise of all outstanding options granted and yet to be
exercised under all the share option schemes of the Company does
not exceed 30% of the shares of the Company in issue from time to
time. The total number of ordinary shares of the Company issued and
to be issued upon exercise of the options granted to each participant
(including both exercised and outstanding options) in any 12-month
period up to and including the date of grant must not exceed 1% of
the ordinary shares of the Company then in issue unless approved by
the Shareholders and issue of a circular and all other information in
compliance with the GEM Listing Rules.

The maximum number of ordinary shares of the Company which may
be issued upon exercise of all options that may be granted under
the existing Scheme limit is 126,058,234 shares of HK$0.005 each,
representing approximately 10% of the Company’s issued share
capital as at the date of this annual report. As at the date of this report,
options carrying the rights to subscribe for 25,200,000 ordinary shares
of the Company have been granted under the existing Scheme limit
and options carrying the rights to subscribe for 100,858,234 ordinary
shares of the Company (representing approximately 8% of the issued
share capital of the Company as at the date of this report) may be
granted under the existing Scheme limit.

An option may be exercised in accordance with the terms of the
Scheme at any time during a period as the Board may determine
which shall not exceed one year from the date of grant subject to the
provisions of early termination thereof.

Save for the Scheme as disclosed in the paragraphs headed “Share
Option Scheme” above, no equity-linked agreements that will or may
result in the Company issuing shares or that require the Company
to enter into any agreements that will or may result in the Company
issuing shares were entered into by the Company during the Year or
subsisted at the end of the Year.
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EFERE

Details of the movements in the share options of the Company

RERRRRIREZA 8 2 BEEZ B HI5HI0

pursuant to the Scheme during the Year are as follows: T
Number of share options
BREHR
Outstanding
Date of grant and Exercise At Granted Lapsed as at
Name or category of vesting date of Exercise period of price of 1 January during during 31 December
participants share options share options granted share options 2018 the Year the Year 2018
RZZ2-N%
BRERLES RZZ2-NF tzB=1-A
SRELAREN RERAH REBREZTRS BREZTRE e RERRHE RERXN HATE
(HKS per share) (ote (3)
(BRER) Wit)
Executive Directors
HiEs
Chan Wai Lung 8 June 2018 8 June 2018 - 7 June 2019 0197 - 12,600,000 - 12,600,000
s ZE-N\ERANR ZE-\ERANRE
ZE-nFRALA
Lam Ching Yee 28 March 2017 28 March 2017 - 27 March 2018 0315 4,510,000 - (4,510,000) -
it 4 “5-+EZA-t)\A “E-tE=A-+N\BZ
“Z-\EZAZttA
Lin Ting 28 March 2017 28 March 2017 - 27 March 2018 0.315 4,510,000 - (4,510,000 -
HE “5-+EZA-t)\A “E-tE=A-+N\BZ
“Z-\EZAZttA
Non-executive Director
FHTES
Ng Wing Cheong Stephen 28 March 2017 28 March 2017 - 27 March 2018 0315 4,510,000 - (4,510,000 -
REE “5-+EZf-t)\A “E-tF=fA-+N\BZ
“Z-\EZAZttA
Employees 28 March 2017 28 March 2017 - 27 March 2018 0315 4,510,000 - (4,510,000) -
Eg “5-+EZA-t)\A “E-tE=fA-+N\BZ
“Z-\EZAZttA
8.June 2018 8 June 2018-7 June 2019 0197 - 12,600,000 - 12,600,000
ZE-N\ERANR ZE-\ERANRE
ZE-nERALA
Other participants 28 March 2017 28 March 2017 - 27 March 2018 0315 86,970,000 - (86,970,000) -
Eth38E “5-+EZA-t)\A “E-tE=fA-+N\BZ
“Z-\EZAZttA
105,010,000 25,200,000 (105,010,000) 25,200,000
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() The closing price of the ordinary shares of the Company immediately before the
date on which the share options were granted was HK$0.185 per share.

(o)  Consideration of HK$1 was paid by each of the grantees on their acceptance
of the share options granted.

During the Year, no share options were exercised or cancelled, and
105,010,000 share options have lapsed. Further details of the Scheme
are set out in note 33 to the consolidated financial statements.

CONVERTIBLE SECURITIES, OPTIONS AND
WARRANTS

Save for the options granted under the Scheme as disclosed in the
section headed “Share Option Scheme” above, neither the Company
nor any of its subsidiaries had granted or issued any convertible
securities, options, warrants or similar rights during the Year.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
articles of association or the laws of the Cayman Islands, being the
jurisdiction in which the Company was incorporated, which would
oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to its
existing Shareholders.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries had purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the Year.

RESERVES

Details of the movements in the reserves of the Group and the
Company during the Year are set out in the consolidated statement of
changes in equity on page 89 of this annual report and in note 40 to
the consolidated financial statements respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

Details of the movements in the reserves available for distribution of the
Company during the Year are set out in note 40 to the consolidated
financial statements.

As at 31 December 2018, the Company had reserves amounting
to approximately HK$161,184,000 (2017: approximately
HK$171,544,000) available for distribution as calculated in accordance
with statutory provisions applicable in the Cayman Islands.
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PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in the property, plant and equipment of
the Group during the Year are set out in note 18 to the consolidated
financial statements.

CHARITABLE DONATIONS

Charitable donations made by the Group for the Year amounted to
HK$294,000 (2017: approximately HK$83,000).

DIRECTORS

The Directors who held office during the Year and up to the date of this
annual report were as follows:

Executive Directors

Mr. Chan Wai Lung (Chairman)

Ms. Lam Ching Yee

Ms. Lin Ting

Mr. Shi Shaowu (appointed on 16 May 2018)

Non-executive Directors

Mr. Lo Yu Man (appointed on 9 October 2018)
Mr. Fung Ka Lok Adams (retired on 25 June 2018)
Mr. Ng Wing Cheong Stephen (resigned on 9 October 2018)

Independent non-executive Directors
Mr. Lam Kai Yeung

Ms. Lee Kwun Ling, May Jean

Mr. Zhong Shi

CHANGES IN DIRECTORS’ INFORMATION

Pursuant to Rule 17.50A(1) of the GEM Listing Rules, there were
changes in the information required to be disclosed pursuant to
paragraphs (a) to (e) and (g) of Rule 17.50(2) of the GEM Listing Rules
in the course of the term of office of a Director.

With effect from 1 January 2019, (i) the annual director’s fee and annual
salary of Mr. Chan Wai Lung have been revised to HK$120,000 and
HK$870,000 respectively; and (i) the annual director’s fees of Ms.
Lam Ching Yee, Mr. Lam Kai Yeung, Ms. Lee Kwun Ling, May Jean
and Mr. Zhong Shi have been revised to HK$360,000, HK$138,000,
HK$96,000 and HK$96,000 respectively.

Mr. Chan Wai Lung, an executive Director and the chairman of the
Board, ceased to act as a director of Elite Pro-Management Limited
in July 2018 and has been appointed as a non-executive director of
Noble Engineering on 10 August 2018.

Save as disclosed above, there are no other matters that need to be
disclosed pursuant to Rule 17.50A(1) of the GEM Listing Rules.
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of Mr. Chan Wai Lung (an executive Director and the chairman of
the Board), Ms. Lam Ching Yee (an executive Director), Ms. Lin Ting (an
executive Director) and Mr. Zhong Shi (an independent non-executive
Director) has entered into a service contract with the Company for a
term of 12 months commencing from 1 January 2018 to 31 December
2018 (both days inclusive). Mr. Lam Kai Yeung (an independent
non-executive Director) has entered into a service contract with
the Company for the period from 24 June 2017 to 31 December
2018 (both days inclusive) and Ms. Lee Kwun Ling, May Jean (an
independent non-executive Director) has entered into a service
contract with the Company for the period from 26 September 2017 to
31 December 2018 (both days inclusive). Each of Mr. Chan Wai Lung,
Ms. Lam Ching Yee, Ms. Lin Ting, Mr. Lam Kai Yeung, Ms. Lee Kwun
Ling, May Jean and Mr. Zhong Shi has been re-appointed for a term of
12 months commencing from 1 January 2019 to 31 December 2019.

Mr. Shi Shaowu, an executive Director, who has entered into a service
contract with the Company for the period from 16 May 2018 to 31
December 2018 (both days inclusive), has been re-appointed for a
term of 12 months commencing from 1 January 2019 to 31 December
2019 (both days inclusive). Mr. Lo Yu Man, a non-executive Director,
who has entered into an appointment agreement with the Company
for the period from 9 October 2018 to 31 December 2018 (both days
inclusive), has been re-appointed for a term of 12 months commencing
from 1 January 2019 to 31 December 2019 (both days inclusive).

All service contracts and appointment agreements with Directors are
subject to termination, among others, by giving not less than one
month’s written notice.

REMUNERATION OF THE DIRECTORS AND
FIVE INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST
EMOLUMENTS

Details of the remuneration of the Directors and the five individuals
with the highest emoluments are set out in notes 14 and 15 to the
consolidated financial statements respectively.

ARRANGEMENTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES BY THE DIRECTORS

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Share Option Scheme” on
pages 65 to 68 of this annual report, none of the Company, its holding
company, or any of its subsidiaries and fellow subsidiaries was a party
to any arrangements to enable the Directors to acquire benefits by
means of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company
or any other body corporate at the end of the Year or at any time during
the Year.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2018, the interests and short positions of the
Directors and chief executive of the Company in the shares, underlying
shares and debentures of the Company or its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) (i) which were required,
pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the register
referred to therein; or (i) which were required to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Rules 5.46 to 5.67 of
the GEM Listing Rules, were as follows:

EERTETHRAERKG - 1HE
ROoOREBEEEPNEERAXS

RIB-N\F+_A=t—H EZFREAQFETE
THRABRARRREEEEE (EE L& 5 M

BAGBIEXVER) BB - BRAR (D R (R E T -
A ()R 1R 38 5 e R 1 ) 58 362 16 R B RC A S 6 A
R B RM AR KRR o) R IEGEM LT
RIZE 5.46 £ 5.67 (RAMEG AR T KB X P s K
KRBT

Number of Approximate

underlying percentage of

shares held/ shareholding as at

Name of Director Capacity/nature of interest interested 31 December 2018
R=ZZ-N\F

BEEEREN +t=A=+-—H

EEgA B REEME HEROHE REBHNT DT
(note (b)) (note (c))

(K13t b)) (K17 ()

Mr. Chan Wai Lung (note (a)) Beneficial owner 12,600,000 (L) 1.00

BRIERESEE (Hat(a) BEamlEBA

Notes:

(@  On 8 June 2018, Mr. Chan Wai Lung, being an executive Director and the
chairman of the Board, was granted options to subscribe for 12,600,000
ordinary shares of the Company under the Scheme. Such options can be
exercised by Mr. Chan Wai Lung from 8 June 2018 to 7 June 2019 at the
exercise price of HK$0.197 per share.

(b) “L” denotes long position in the underlying shares of the Company.

(c) The total number of the issued shares as at 31 December 2018 (i.e.
1,260,582,340 shares) had been used for the calculation of the approximate
percentage shareholdings in the Company.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2018, none of the
Directors or the chief executive of the Company had any interests or
short positions in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the
Company or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning
of Part XV of the SFO) which would be required, pursuant to section
352 of the SFO, to be entered into the register referred to therein, or,
pursuant to Rules 5.46 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules relating to
securities transactions by the Directors, to be notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND
OTHER PERSONS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT
POSITIONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING
SHARES

So far as is known to the Directors, as at 31 December 2018, the
following substantial Shareholders and persons (not being a Director
or chief executive of the Company) had, or were deemed to have,
interests or short positions in the shares and underlying shares of the

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

EFERE

FERRRHEMALTRERS RBE

RONEZER AR

BEEMM R_Z-N\F+-_A=+—8 T3
FEERRAL (WHFEFHKARBERITHAR)
EARRB D RERR D FEA IR SERBRE
Hr KB &P 5 336 IRFCEM A R R IFEHE R

BEmEAA

Company which were recorded in the register required to be kept by A EEARE -
the Company under section 336 of the SFO:
A. Substantial Shareholders A EEBR
Approximate
Number of percentage of
shares held/ shareholding as at
Name of shareholders Capacity/nature of interest interested 31 December 2018
R=Z—N\F
BEHEREN +=HA=+—8
BRERERB 51 REEMtE BROHA RESNBEDL
(note a) (note b)
(Btita) (Bi7Fb)
Ever Robust Holdings Limited (note ¢) Beneficial owner 136,800,000 (L) 10.85
ERERBRAT (Hitc) EnfiAA
Whole Kind Investments Limited Interest in a controlled 136,800,000 (L) 10.85
(note c) corporation
SEREBRAT (Hatc) LB
Hang Tai Yue Group Holdings Limited Interest in controlled 136,800,000 (L) 10.85
(note c) corporations
ERMERERER AT (Hitc) REEE R
Leung Kwok Pong Beneficial owner 153,370,000 (L) 1217
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B. Other persons

B. HftAx

Approximate
Number of percentage of
shares held/ shareholding as at

Name of shareholders Capacity/nature of interest interested 31 December 2018

H=B— N
#¥E/#F  t=A=t-8

BRER®E B REHE EENROHAE RESNBEDL
(note a) (note b)
(Ktzta) (Ki7Fb)
Perfect Growth Limited (hote d) Beneficial owner 87,742,340 (L) 6.96
ERER AT (Hitad) EmEAA
Lucky Famous Limited (note @) Interest in a controlled 87,742,340 (L) 6.96
corporation
Lucky Famous Limited (#7172 d) REEE
GET Holdings Limited (note d) Interest in controlled 87,742,340 (L) 6.96
corporations
BHERERRT (HiFd) REEE R
Notes: Biat

(a) “L” denotes long position in the ordinary shares of the Company.

(b)  The total number of the issued shares of the Company as at 31
December 2018 (i.e. 1,260,582,340 shares) had been used for the
calculation of the approximate percentage shareholdings in the
Company.

(c)  These 136,800,000 ordinary shares of the Company are held by Ever
Robust Holdings Limited (“Ever Robust”), which is wholly-owned
by Whole Kind Investments Limited (“Whole Kind”), which is in turn
wholly-owned by Hang Tai Yue Group Holdings Limited (“HTY Group”,
formerly known as Interactive Entertainment China Cultural Technology
Investments Limited). By virtue of the SFO, each of Whole Kind and HTY
Group is deemed, or taken to be, interested in all the ordinary shares of
the Company held by Ever Robust.

(d)  These 87,742,340 ordinary shares of the Company are held by Perfect
Growth Limited (“Perfect Growth”), which is wholly-owned by Lucky
Famous Limited (“Lucky Famous”), which is in turn wholly-owned by GET
Holdings Limited (“GET”). By virtue of the SFO, each of Lucky Famous
and GET is deemed, or taken to be, interested in all the ordinary shares
of the Company held by Perfect Growth.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2018, the Directors are
not aware of any other persons who had interests or short positions in
the shares or underlying shares of the Company which would fall to be
disclosed to the Company and recorded in the register required to be
kept by the Company under section 336 of the SFO.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Biographical details of the Directors who are also the senior
management of the Group are set out on pages 45 to 48 of this annual
report.

DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN CONTRACTS

No transaction, arrangement or contracts of significance (as defined
under the GEM Listing Rules) to which the Company, its holding
companies, or any of its subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries was a
party, and in which a Director or an entity connected with a Director
(as defined under section 486 of the Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622
of the Laws of Hong Kong)) had a material interest, either directly or
indirectly, subsisted at the end of the Year or at any time during the
Year.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contract concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company was
entered into or existed during the Year.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has received from each of the independent non-
executive Directors an annual confirmation of his/her independence
pursuant to Rule 5.09 of the GEM Listing Rules and the Company
considers that the independent non-executive Directors are or have
remained independent.

COMPETING INTERESTS

Ms. Lam Ching Yee, an executive Director, is also a director of certain
subsidiaries of HTY Group, a substantial Shareholder, i.e. Mark Profit
Finance Limited (which is a company principally engaged in money
lending business in Hong Kong) and other subsidiaries of HTY Group
which are principally engaged in assets investments business.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors or their respective
close associates as defined in the GEM Listing Rules had any business
or interests in a business which competes or is likely to complete,
either directly or indirectly, with the business of the Group during
the Year. As at 31 December 2018, the Company did not have any
controlling Shareholder.
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RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEME

Particulars of the retirement benefits scheme of the Group as at 31
December 2018 are set out in note 37 to the consolidated financial
statements.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the Year, the top five customers of the Group accounted for
approximately 15.6% (2017: approximately 17.4%) in aggregate of
the Group’s consolidated revenue. The top five suppliers of the Group
accounted for approximately 61.4% (2017: approximately 58.5%) in
aggregate of the Group’s consolidated cost of sales (excluding direct
staff cost) for the Year. In addition, the largest customer of the Group
accounted for approximately 4.9% (2017: approximately 4.9%) of the
Group’s consolidated revenue and the largest supplier of the Group
accounted for approximately 31.6% (2017: approximately 35.8%) of
the Group’s consolidated cost of sales (excluding direct staff cost) for
the Year.

To the best knowledge of the Directors, none of the Directors, their
close associates or any Shareholders (who, to the best knowledge and
belief of the Directors, own more than 5% of the Company’s issued
share capital) were interested in these major customers or suppliers of
the Group during the Year.

KEY RELATIONSHIPS WITH CUSTOMERS
AND SUPPLIERS

The Group has a diversified customer base with over 100 customers
mainly from Hong Kong, Macau, the PRC and Singapore. In order
to maintain relationships with customers, various means have been
established to strengthen the communications between the customers
and the Group to strengthen and expand the Group’s provision of
customer service. In addition, the Group will continue expanding its
sales and marketing team to proactively manage customer relations,
expand its customer base and enhance customer loyalty.

The Group does not have any supplier of goods or services which is
specific to the Group’s business and which is required by the Group on
a regular basis to enable the Group to continue to supply or serve its
customers.
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KEY RELATIONSHIPS WITH EMPLOYEES

Human resources are the most valuable asset of the Group.
Developing and retaining talents are vital to the Group’s success. The
Group is committed to providing its employees with a safe, pleasant
and healthy working environment. The Group rewards and recognises
its employees by competitive remuneration packages and implements
a key performance index scheme with appropriate incentives,
and promotes career development and progression by providing
opportunities for career advancement.

In addition, each department of the Group is responsible for
determining the training needs for its employees in its department
and any suggested applicable training courses either arranged
internally or by external service providers shall be submitted to the
senior management of the Group for approval. Knowledge, skills
and capacities of employees are vital to the continuous business
growth and success of the Group. The Group strives to ensure that all
employees will fulfill the relevant job requirements through education,
training, technical and work experience.

Further details of the composition of our employees are set out on
page 53 of this annual report.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

There was no significant subsequent event after the Year.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

The related party transactions of the Group as set out in note 39 to
the consolidated financial statements did not constitute connected
transactions under Chapter 20 of the GEM Listing Rules.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company has complied with all the applicable code provisions
as set out in the CG Code contained in Appendix 15 to the GEM
Listing Rules then in force during the Year, except for the deviation as
disclosed under the section headed “Chairman and chief executive
officer” on page 34 of this annual report. Details of the Group’s
corporate governance practices adopted by the Board are set out in
the Corporate Governance Report on pages 29 to 44 of this annual
report.
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SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors, the Company has maintained
the prescribed public float required by the GEM Listing Rules during
the Year and as at the date of this annual report.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the consolidated financial results and the consolidated
assets and liabilities of the Group for the last five financial years is set
out on pages 210 to 211 of this annual report.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND
PERFORMANCES

The Group is committed to reducing its impacts on the environment
and enhancing the quality and safety of its working environment. The
Group aims to reduce emissions and use of resources in its operation
through various environmental protection measures, including using
electrical appliances with energy efficient labels, encouraging its
employees to minimise use of resources such as electricity and water,
and promoting the use of electronic communication and recycled
papers among its employees.

Further details of the environmental policies and performances of the
Group are set out in the Environmental, Social and Governance Report
which is set out on pages 49 to 63 of this annual report.

COMPLIANCE WITH RELEVANT LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

The Group recognises the importance of compliance with regulatory
requirements and that the risk of non-compliance with relevant
requirements could lead to adverse impact on the business
operation and financial position of the Group. The Board as a whole
is responsible to ensure the Group is in compliance with relevant
laws and regulations that have a significant impact on the Group.
To the best of knowledge of the Directors, the Group has complied
with relevant laws and regulations during the Year. The details of the
Group’s compliance with relevant laws and regulations are set out in
the Environmental, Social and Governance Report which is set out on
pages 49 to 63 of this annual report.
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PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

The Company has arranged for appropriate insurance cover for
directors’ and officers’ liabilities in respect of legal actions against its
Directors and senior management arising out of corporate activities.
During the Year and up to the date of this annual report, a permitted
indemnity provision (as defined in section 9 of the Companies
(Directors’ Report) Regulation (Cap. 622D of the Laws of Hong Kong)
was and is currently in force for the benefit of the Directors.

AUDITOR

With effect from 6 December 2017, PKF has resigned as auditor of
the Company due to its internal reorganisation which resulted in its
change of entity status from a partnership to a limited company under
the name of PKF Hong Kong Limited. Following the resignation of PKF,
PKF Hong Kong Limited has been appointed as the new auditor of the
Company.

PKF Hong Kong Limited, the auditor of the Company for the Year, shall
retire in the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company and,
being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment pursuant to article
176(a) of the articles of association of the Company. A resolution will be
submitted to the coming annual general meeting of the Company to re-
appoint PKF Hong Kong Limited as the auditor of the Company.

On behalf of the Board

Chan Wai Lung
Chairman

Hong Kong, 26 March 2019

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EFERE

R R E R

ARREHEEERSRERABEEEYEHAE
REHELERTY  REERTBRABZAME
EEE ZRRZH - REARBEAFRES B
EREEOMEMED 2 BEFNBER CEE
RBEBEMIFE622DERR (BFHE) RHFEIK)
BEMREEN -

B RED

BEZZE—+F+-ARER KERERES)
AR EBAEEARER EEERSIHAARD
FEBRARRRL R AKRERSR (BE) T60
EBAARARMETARBZEE - EXERE
(B FEIMEEMEHER - RERER ()
ST EHMBERQRERERA R B IZEHED

REBEARRPIABERMAF76() & - ARRRA
FRENZBEAERER (B SFMEHMABR
RAMNARBEERRBFAE LRE AFE
BREBEERER AWERANERER(FE)
BRI EBABER QB RAR AIZHBENEIRE RS
RARBEEERNRRBFRE LIER -

REEFE

E
R

HE ZE-NAF=ZAZ-+XH

EMSRMEEERERAT | 2018 ERK

78



79

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF

FINSOFT FINANCIAL INVESTMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Finsoft
Financial Investment Holdings Limited and its subsidiaries (together
“the Group”) set out on pages 85 to 209, which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December
2018, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes in equity
and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and
notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2018, and of its consolidated financial performance and its
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have been
properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSAS”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the “Auditor’s Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements” section of
our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the Code”),
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment,
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in
the context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a
whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a
separate opinion on these matters.

We have determined to communicate in our report the following key
audit matters for the year ended 31 December 2018:

Goodwill impairment assessment

The Group’s goodwill as disclosed in notes 4 and 20 to the
consolidated financial statements was determined to be a key audit
matter because of the significant estimation uncertainty resulted from
the use of unobservable inputs and the significant judgement made in
selecting the estimation method.

Our procedures performed to address the matter included:

- Obtaining an understanding of the basis adopted in the
value-in-use calculations prepared by the management;

- Assessing the reasonableness of the key assumptions made by
the management, including growth rates and gross profit with
reference to current market circumstances;

- Evaluating the reasonableness of the financial budgets approved
by the management and the cash flow projections by comparing
with the industry or market data and the Group’s business plan;

- Reviewing subsequent events relevant to the estimation;

- Re-calculating the estimation made by the management;

- Evaluating the appropriateness of discount rate applied in the
forecast by comparing them to industry and market data;

- Checking the sensitivity analysis performed by management in
respect of the growth rates and discount rates to evaluate the
extent of impact on the calculations of the value-in-use; and

—  Determining whether indication of possible management bias
exists.
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Impairment assessment of loans receivable

The Group’s loans receivable as disclosed in notes 4, 26 and 27 to
the consolidated financial statements was determined to be a key
audit matter because the assessment of the recoverability of loans
receivable and recognition of loss allowance are inherently subjective
and requires significant management judgement, which increases the
risk of error or potential management bias.

Our procedures performed to address the matter included:

- Understanding and evaluating the key controls that the Group
has implemented to manage and monitor its credit risk;

—  Checking, on a sample basis, the ageing profile of the loans
receivable as at 31 December 2018 to the underlying financial
records and post year-end settlements to bank receipts;

- Inquiring of management for the status of each of the material
loans receivable past due as at year end and corroborating
explanations from management with supporting evidence, such
as understanding on-going business relationship with the debtors
based on loans records, checking historical and subsequent
settlement records of and other correspondence with the
debtors; and

—  Assessing the appropriateness of the expected credit loss
provisioning methodology, examining the key data inputs on
a sample basis to assess their accuracy and completeness,
and challenging the assumptions, including both historical and
forward-looking information, used to determine the expected
credit losses.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

OTHER INFORMATION

The directors are responsible for the other information which
comprises the information included in the Group’s annual report for
the year ended 31 December 2018 (“Annual Report”) other than the
consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of the other information, we are required to report that
fact. We have nothing to report in this regard in respect of the other
information we obtained prior to the date of this auditor’s report.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the HKICPA and
the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary
to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors
either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no
realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors are responsible for overseeing the Group’s financial
reporting process.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE

AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL

STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. We report our opinion solely to you,
as a body, in accordance with the terms of our engagement and for
no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept
liability to any other person for the contents of this report. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect
a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in
the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated

financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism

throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design a